UFJ

)

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

28
15 12 31
SPC
(Barak Fund SPC Limited)

(Mitchell Alan Barrett)

KY1-1002 10240
103
( )
(c/o Harneys Services (Cayman) Limited, 4th Floor
Harbor Place, 103 South Church Street, PO Box 10240
Grand Cayman KY1-1002, Cayman Islands)

03(6550)8301
2024 30
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SPC
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2019 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 12 31 2022 12 31 2023 12 31
1 12 13 14 15
X 147,987,192 165,013,338 88,176,243 68,118,914 106,661,304
(23,219,190) (25,890,593) (13,834,853) (10,687,858) (16,735,159)
34,686,455 2,037,991 98,364,692 78,869,798 67,247,524
( (5,442,305) ( 319,761) 15,433,420) 12,374,671) 10,551,137)
34,686,455 2,037,991 98,364,692 78,869,798 67,247,524
(5,442,305) (  319,761) 15,433,420) 12,374,671) 10,551,137)
) 765,983,487 860,817,172 726,936,483 556,066,685 357,819,161
(120,182,809) (135,062, 214) (114,056,334) (87,246,863) (56,141,826)
B4 13,555,348 28,858,314 28,155,094 24,746,392 19,005,997
765,983,487 860,817,172 726,936,483 556,066,685 357,819,161
(120,182,809) (135,062, 214) (114,056,334) (87,246,863) (56,141,826)
942,852,570 968,772,483 832,472,464 663,634,106 472,701,508
(147,933,568) (152,000,403) (130,614,930) (104,124,191) (74,166,867)
0.98 0.97 0.85 0.73 0.61
B4
(154) (152) (133) (115) (96)
B4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
81.24 88.86 87.32 83.79 75.70
4.53 0.24 13.53 14.18 18.79
(
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B2 28,450,296 4,464 )
B3 499,309 78 )
B4 12,348,933 1,938
Bl 1,493,911
B2 338,929
B3 6,093
B4 18,163,681
@
2024 B4
B4
1 8,894,773 48.97
2 7,550,362 41.57
3 1,418,546 7.81
5.1

structured
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10

14/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

15/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

16/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

17/216



90

18/216

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

19/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

20/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

21/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

22/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

23/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

Directory
Directory
2013 22
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US FATCA

TIA

FATCA

OECD

CRS

Controlling Persons

US 1GA
FATCA US FATCA
US IGA US FATCA US 1GA
FATCA
FATCA
US 1GA
TIA
IRS US 1GA
OECD
CRS
CRS
MCAA
MCAA
IT
MCAA
2018 CRS CRS
CRS
TIA
TIA
http://www.tia.gov.ky/pdf/CRS Legislation.pdf
US IGA MCAA
TIA

AEOI
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(2024 )

( ; )
271,297,365 26.92 70.98
191,756,549 19.03 50.17
89,586,558 8.89 23.44
89,441,528 8.88 23.40
55,848,001 5.54 14.61
54,325,458 5.39 14.21
38,864,311 3.86 10.17
33,894,531 3.36 8.87
24,020,832 2.38 6.28
23,040,027 2.29 6.03
22,845,977 2.27 5.98
17,690,946 1.76 4.63
14,100,214 1.40 3.69
13,265,541 1.32 3.47
10,960,845 1.09 2.87
10,368,980 1.03 2.71
2,785,405 0.28 0.73
1,159,221 0.12 0.30
935,323 0.09 0.24
922,651 0.09 0.24
896,112 0.09 0.23
836,012 0.08 0.22
968,842,385 96.15 253.49
38,765,291 3.85 10.14
1,007,607,676 100.00 263.63
625,406,264 62.07 163.63

382,201,413
( ) (59,967 y 37.93 100.00
2024 30 UFJ

156.90
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2024
10 66
1 A 14.21
2 B 14.21
3 C 10.97
4 D 10.60
5 E 10.45
6 F 9.23
7 G 7.95
8 H 7.85
9 1 7.53
10 J 7.00
B4 2019 11
2024
B4
13
2021 12 31 832,472,464 130,614,930 726,936,483 114,056,334 0.85 133
14
2022 12 31 663,634,106 104,124,191 556,066,685 87,246,863 0.73 115
15
2023 12 31 472,701,508 74,166,867 357,819,161 56,141,826 0.61 96
2023 1,232,022,749 193,304,369 532,050,449 83,478,715 0.74 116
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1,242,591,696 194,962,637 530,970,614 83,309,289 0.74 116
1,246,862,636 195,632,748 445,009,374 69,821,971 0.74 116
1,254,530,188 196,835,786 444,019,998 69,666,738 0.73 115
1,119,435,408 175,639,416 432,953,671 67,930,431 0.72 113
10 1,128,082,429 176,996,133 418,060,780 65,593,736 0.71 111
11 1,128,702,871 177,093,480 417,227,281 65,462,960 0.71 111
12 998,821,454 156,715,086 406,158,689 63,726,298 0.69 108
2024 1,010,684,257 158,576,360 387,337,505 60,773,255 0.69 108
1,011,541,720 158,710,896 386,510,034 60,643,424 0.69 108
1,006,708,295 157,952,531 383,032,972 60,097,873 0.68 107
1,007,607,676 158,093,644 382,201,413 59,967,402 0.68 107
) IFRS
B4
( )
)
B4
13
12.37
(2021 2021 12 31 )
14
14.12
(2022 2022 12 31 )
15
16.44
(2023 2023 12 31 )
(@) ( ) 100x ( )
( )
( )

(Vistra Alternative Investments (Mauritius) Limited)
72201
355
(355 NEX, Rue du Savoir, Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius)
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25

CEO

2009

10
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(Michael Pearson)

2021 27 SPC

20

INSOL International
350
Restructuring and Insolvency
Specialists Association

(D)
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2020 3 30

Kroll Advisory Limited
Mike Cooke
fire sale
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2023 2022
34 2022 35
2024
2023
2023 12 31 80
25
2021 2021 30
20,000,000

2022 2021 12 31 2022 31

2022 30 92,000,000
2023 2022 12 31 2023 31
2023 30 131,000,000
2024

18,000,000
2020 31

B4

40/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

B4 B4
B4 2019 11
B4

B4

B4 B4
B4
B4 B4

B4
17:00

B4 B4

B4
B4

B4
B4

B4 100,000.00
10,000.00

100,000.00

10
12 00
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MLRO
DMLRO
AMLCO
CIMA DMLRO MLRO
AMLCO 2018
MLRO DMLRO AMLCO
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(Barak Fund Management Limited)

)
2024 40,000 )

)
2008 12
CIs

2024 11,855.97
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2024
i 40.00
The Prodigy Trust
38.22
(Alteia Investment Holdings Ltd
) ) 21.78
(Alteia Holding Trust
(2024 )
100
Kevindren Ramsamy HSBC 2006 2010
®
011 2015
2015 DRC
100
10
Mehsana Hosenbocus
(LLB MBA
AcuFin
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2024 SPC
2024
( )
( )
B1: 228.19
B2: 83.94
2009
1 382 B3: 76.83
(Barak Structured Trade Finance Fund) ( )
B4 0.6799
2019
2 39.69 Gl: 83.26
(Barak Africa Trade Finance Fund)
2016
3 i i 26.07 118.87
(Barak Mikopo Credit Fund)
2016
4 1 11.56 J1: 158.03
(Barak Shariah Trade Finance Fund)
2014
5 8.66 86.51
(Barak Impact Finance Fund)
2016
6 1.28 120.08
(Barak Asha Impact Fund)
2014
7 0.45 68.33
(Barak Shanta Fund)
)

(The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited Financial Asset Services (Corporate and

Investment Banking Division))
)
2023 12

14
()

)

8.41 )
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)

Vistra Alternative Investments (Mauritius) Limited
)
2023 12 25,000

)
45 5,000

Teneo Partners

)
2024 8,450

)
Teneo Partners 2009 14 2010

2010 2011
2011

)

(The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited Financial Asset Services (Corporate and
Investment Banking Division))

Scrip

Vistra Alternative Investments (Mauritius) Limited
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90

Teneo Partners
Teneo Partners

IFRS

38 59 328

23 103

2024
30 UFJ 156.90
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SPC
2023 12 31
( )
2023 2022

5 349,183,173 54,786,840 520,259,260 81,628,678
5 102,140,775 16,025,888 94,144,762 14,771,313
4 21,031,463 3,299,837 39,694,238 6,228,026
4(a) 9,392,992 1,473,760
6 346,097 54,303 142,854 22,414
472,701,508 74,166,867 663,634,106 104,124,191
8(a) 102,618,251 16,100,804 84,771,430 13,300,637
14 7,753,790 1,216,570 18,210,098 2,857,164
8(b) 3,486,936 547,100 3,447,364 540,891
7 1,023,370 160,567 1,138,529 178,635
114,882,347 18,025,040 107,567,421 16,877,328
357,819,161 56,141,826 556,066,685 87,246,863

2024 24
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SPC
2023 12 31
(
2023

9(a) 89,933,812 14,110,615 91,917,632 14,421,876
9(c) (4,668,121) (732,428) (6,863,742) (1,076,921)
9(c) 18,895,429 2,964,693 (19,576, 253) (3,071,514)
9(b) 2,160,597 338,998 2,076,629 325,823
10 339,587 53,281 564,648 88,593
106,661,304 16,735,159 68,118,914 10,687,858
5 150,585,345 23,626,841 121,148,509 19,008, 201
17(a) 10,024,767 1,572,886 13,537,473 2,124,030
11 11,306,895 1,774,052 10,344,546 1,623,059
12 1,991,821 312,517 1,958,184 307,239
173,908,828 27,286,295 146,988,712 23,062,529
(67,247,524)  (10,551,137)  (78,869,798) (12,374,671)
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SPC
2023 12 31
( )
2023 2022
556,066,685 87,246,863 726,936,483 114,056,334
(131,000,000)  (20,553,900)  (92,000,000) (14,434,800)
(67,247,524)  (10,551,137)  (78,869,798) (12,374,671)
357,819,161 56,141,826 556,066,685 87,246,863
SPC
2023 12 31
( )
2023 2022

15 (11,677,002) (1.832,122)  (14,931,009) (2,342,675)
97,374,182 15,278,009 78,053,364 12,246,573
6,778,361 1,063,525 8,765,383 1,375,289
(203, 243) (31,889) 3,219,427 505,128
(115, 156) (18,068) (303, 467) (47,614)
8(a) 67,747,189 10,629,534 25,974,151 4,075,344
9,392,992 1,473,760 5,864,655 920,164
39,573 6,209 (112,913) (17,716)
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SPC
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(46,017,800) (7,220,193)  (42,141,717) (6,612,035)
(10,807,671) (1,695,724)

112,511,425 17,653,043 64,387,874 10,102,457
13,048,163 2,047,257 11,338,174 1,778,960
1,613,532 253,163 1,359,944 213,375
(4,379,587) (687,157) (3,040,274) (477,019)
122,793,533 19,266,305 74,045,718 11,617,773
(141,456,308)  (22,194,495)  (80,688,888) (12,660,087)
(141,456,308)  (22,194,495)  (80,688,888) (12,660,087)
(18,662,775) (2,928,189) (6,643,170) (1,042,313)
39,694,238 6,228,026 46,337,408 7,270,339
21,031,463 3,299,837 39,694,238 6,228,026
2008 24

2023 12 31 2022
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IFRS

IFRS

2020 3 30

18

fire sale ( )

ECL ECL
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@

(b)

@)
IFRS
IFRS

FVOCI
SPPI
SPPI
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SPPI

(b)

FVOCI
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17(e)

©

ECL

ECL 12
12
ECL

ECL

IFRS

SICR

SICR

SICR SICR
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PD 12 PD S P
S P
S P
12 EAD
PD LGD ECL
LGD
LGD LGD
LGD
20 50
ECL
SICR ECL
PD EAD LGD
LGD PD ECL
S P
ECL
1 1

2023
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(d)

ECL

GDP

2022

GDP

19.45
(61.16)
(5.40)

17.24

(41)
(20.47)
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24.31 14.59
(45.87) (76.48)
(3.06) (7.75)
21.55 12.93
(27.78) (54.22)
(15.35) (25.59)
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ECL 12 ECL
©
SICR
2023 2022 12 31
®
) )
0 2022 0
2023 12 31 128,118,472

2022 8,405,332

@

@
(b)
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@

(b)
12

©
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12

2023

2023

2023

2023
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Bl B2 B3 B4
B3 B4
2023 12 31
2023 2022
( ) ( )
9,367,077 20,125,708
9,636,356 17,540,450
2,028,030 2,028,080
21,031,463 39,694,238
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4(a).

12 31

294

Barak STF
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0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)

OOoooooooooooOooao

2022 2,209
2023 2022
( ) ( )
9,392,992
2023 2022

( ) ( )
866,407,248 1,015,016,462
(517,224,075) (494,757,202)
349,183,173 520,259,260
* 102,140,775 94,144,762
451,323,948 614,404,022

102,140,775
3,222,073
17(b)

866,407,248 1,015,016,462
(91,915, 614) (78,553, 440)
774,491,634 936,463,022
102,140,775 94,144,762
(10,702,637) (6.,217,990)
91,438,138 87,926,772

865,929,772

1,024,389,794
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2023

ECL

ECL

2023

ECL

ECL

2022

ECL

ECL

2022
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0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)

OOoooooooooooOooao

ECL
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
77,883,770 696,607,864 774,491,634
(3,969,385) (513,254,690) (517,224,075)
73,917,385 183,353,174 257,267,559
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
597,620,944 53,065,426 45,921,494 696,607,864
(437,289,933) (36,201,374) (39,763,383) (513, 254,690)
160,331,011 16,864,052 6,158,111 183,353,174
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
19,267,151 66,944,959 850,250,912 936,463,022
(217,917) (3,515,469) (491,023,816) (494,757,202)
19,049,234 63,429,490 359,227,096 441,705,820
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
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664,063,840 124,269,523 61,917,549 850,250,912
ECL (355,646,713) (78,490,521) (56,886,582) (491,023,816)
ECL
308,417,127 45,779,002 5,030,967 359,227,096
12
ECL
ECL

A.
B.

2024 5

30

563
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300
ECL 5,197,251 20
2025
ECL 20,4
910,809
ECL
1PO
2024
ECL 18,000,000
4,070,828
ECL
ECL
2023
2024
ECL
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110
2023 12 31
22 32,072,228
2023 12 31
51,397 2022 29,943,212
2023 12 31
36,310,711 2022 28,645,677
1PO
2023 12 31
2022 28,100,000
2023 12 31
15,152,614 2022 25,597,248
2023 12 31
7,978,549 2022 15,213,329
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2023 12 31
ECL 16,992,683 2022 13,992,545
796,993
2023 12 31
ECL 9,221,453 2022 9,688,570
2,229,884
10
2023 12
31 ECL 7,806,880 2022
7,802,163
11
2023 12 31
ECL 6,083,193 2022 7,706,706
12
2023 12 31 ECL
3,122,302 2022 7,403,958 173,538
ECL

SPV
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13
14
Eskom
2023 12 31
9,684,718 2022 10,638,719
15
2024
62 Fe CFR
2023 12 31
2022 77,220,992
2022 12 31
6,158,111 2022 5,030,967

4,958,545

10

771216

FE
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2023 12 31
2022 32,440,283

100

174,903

2023

10

85,457,505

ECL
143,373

2023 2022




ECL
12 31

2023

STF

2023 12 31

2022

STF
STF

ECL
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0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)
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ECL 494,757,202 382,014,025
* (128,118,472) (8,405,332)
150,585, 345 121,148,509
517,224,075 494,757,202
128,118,472 2022 8,405,332 14 2022
12
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
19,267,151 66,944,959 850,250,912 936,463,022
717,930 10,938,811 67,693,297 79,350,038
(55,760) 55,760
* 79,262 79,262
(3.804,276) (306,732) (4.111,008)
(16,204,307) (92,966,901) (109,171,208)
(128,118,472) (128,118,472)
77,883,770 696,607,864 774,491,634
12
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
48,843,976 76,764,027 801,652,972 927,260,975
2,181,266 9,909,290 69,474,379 81,564,935
(12,279,773) 12,279,773
77,590,265 20,839,315 12,645,581 111,075,161

(96,990,959)
(77.624)

(40,567,673)

(37,474,085)

(8,327,708)

(175,032,717)
(8,405,332)
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2022 12 31
2023
2023
2023 12 31
2022
2022
2022 12 31
2023
ECL (
2023 12 31

EDINETOOOO

0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)

Ooooddoodooodonn

19,267,151 66,944,959 850,250,912 936,463,022
12
(8.857,912) (69,695,528) (78,553,440)
22,361,014 69,554,600 91,915,614
13,503,102 (140,928) 13,362,134
(14,253,630) (17,149,458) (62,231,635) (93,634,723)
8,857,912 69,695,528 78,553,440
(5,395,718) (17,149,458) 7,463,893 (15,081,283)
12
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
217,917 3,515,469 491,023,816 494,757,202
9,669 574,427 37,612,688 38,196,784
(28) 28
1,809 1,809
(120,511) 136,184,195 136,063,684
(64,381) 1,077,325 1,012,944
(164,986) (24,524,890) (24,689,876)
(128,118,472) (128,118,472)
3,969,385 513,254,690 517,224,075
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12
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2022
2,207,314 4,031,096 375,775,615 382,014,025
26,086 401,492 34,769,995 35,197,573
(4,945,120) 4,945,120
ECL « ) 3,152,554 (2,011,451) 86,821,199 87,962,302
743,213 1,094,332 1,235,038 3,072,583
(888,506) (4,195,443) (5,083,949)
FVTPL
(77,624) (8,327,708) (8,405,332)
2022 12 31
217,917 3,515,469 491,023,816 494,757,202
2023 12 ECL
55,760 2022 4,945,120 ECL 2022
borrowing base
30
866,047,428 2022 1,015,016,462
PD LGD S P

S P SME
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SME
PD S&P SME
EBITDA
LGD
90
ccc-
+ LGD 20
LGD
17(@)(v)

SME

EDINETOOOO
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s P
S P SME
AAA LGD
LGD
ECL
2023 2022
( ) )
17(c) 265,533 21,519
63,722 94,148
16,842 27,187
346,007 142,854

ECL
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2023 2022
( ) ( )
829,543 967,230
147,680 144,560
12,047 16,599
12,500
19,100 7,640
FATCA CRS 2,500 2,500
1,023,370 1,138,529
2023
12 31 FATCA CRS
2023 12 31 2023
2023 2022
( ) ( )
5,693,620 19,954,573
42,438,720 38,897,248
6,206,481 5,665,847
4,308,917 3,898,902
40,165,076 9,368,752
532,238 1,278,956
3,273,199 2,748,160
2,958,992
102,618,251 84,771,430
2023
12 31 38,162,852 2022

47,300,025

2023 2022
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*

12 31

*

10,804,671

EDINETOOOO
0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)
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( ) ( )
84,771,430 93,634,723
67,747,189 25,974,151
(46,017,800) (42,141,717)
11,304,690 10,188,383
(4,379,587) (2.884,110)
(10,807,671)
102,618, 251 84,771,430
2023 2022
( ) ( )
2,761,626 2,761,626
44,332
725,310 641,406
3,486,936 3,447,364
2
2023 2022
( ) ( )
89,297,151 91,561,363
44,332 264,754
590,579 89,515
1,750 2,000
89,933,812 91,917,632
30 2022 30
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35

)

10.

**

B2

**

296,165

11.

2023
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2022

2,160,597

2,076,629

2022 35

2023

2022

18,895,429

(4,668,121)

(19,576, 253)

(6,863,742)

14,227,308

(26,439,995)

2023

18.11

2022

19,392
320,195

564,648

339,587

564,648

B3

2022 563,415

84/216
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2023 2022
( ) ( )
1,723,334 4,293,801
2 4,973,501 4,305,381
5 2,997,780
* 1,612,280 1,745,364
11,306,895 10,344,546
* 800,000 2022 700,000
** 2023 0 2022 0
12.
2023 2022
( ) ( )
1,302,949 956,879
* 169,438 220,640
falalel 133,160 145,811
157,125 144,560
110,207 97,749
16,721 197,450
** 65,721
46,399 43,562
25,000 26,354
23,071
22,920 22,920
5,402 6,167
FATCA CRS 2,500 7,300
1,991,821 1,958,184

2023 15

15,000

85/216



o B3

*kk

13.

2022

14.

20,000,000

25,000

B3

Bl B2 B4

B4
B3

B3
Bl B3
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169,438 2022 220,640
12,047 2022 16,599
Bl B2
2023
100
20,000,100 1
Bl B2 B3 B4
Bl 100,000 B2
B3 25,000 B4 100,000
100,000
Bl 20,000 B2 25,000
25,000 B4 10,000
2020 30
Bl B2
30
12
30
B4 B2
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2023 12
12 31
31
2023
B1
B2
B3
B4
2022
B1
B2

31

2023 31

131,000,000
12 31
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2023 2022
( ) ( )
18,210,098 6,898,986
131,000,000 92,000,000
(141,456,308) (80, 688,888)
7,753,790 18,210,098
131,000,000 2022
2023 30 2023 12
7,753,790
2,035,323 (472,134) 1,563,189
461,761 (107,115) 354,646
8,301 (1,926) 6,375
24,746,392 (5,740,395) 19,005,997
27,251,777 (6,321,570) 20,930,207
2,315,677 (280,354) 2,035,323
525,365 (63,604) 461,761
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15.

16.

B3
B4

Bl
B2
B3
B4
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9,444 (1,143) 8,301
28,155,094 (3,408,702) 24,746,392
31,005,580 (3.753,803) 27,251,777
2023 2022
( ) ( ) ( )
100 204.14 243.59
100 75.09 89.60
100 75.87 87.80
1 0.6097 0.7346
2023 2022
( ) ( )
(67,247,525) (78,869,798)
150,585,345 121,148,509
(18,895,429) 19,576,253
4,668,121 6,863,742
11,306,895 10,344,546
(89,933,812) (91,917,632)
(2,160,597) (2,076,629)
(11,677,002) (14,931,009)
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17.

@

2023
BFML

2022
BFML

2022

0

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

B4
10,024,767 2022 13,537,473
829,543 2022 967,230
12
LIBOR
20

LIBOR

0 2022 0
( )

Bl 12,406 2,532,566

B1 16,153 3,934,709

( )
2023 2022
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B3
B4
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19,392 25,519
2023 2022
( ) ( )
25,519 147,113
433,758 109,072
(193,744) (230, 666)

265,533 25,519
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®

2023 12 31

2023 1 1

2023 12 31
* 2023

**

2022 12 31

(

)
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A B C
59,315,863 17,905,128 77,220,991
(5,299,173) (5,299,173)
1 1
11,101,006 3,222,072 14,323,078
1,751,468 1,751,468
683,213 (683,213)
67,552,337 17,905,128 3,222,073 88,679,578
Barak STF 3,222,073
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2022 1 1

2022 12 31

*

(

)

90,025,813
(24,404,322)
11,405,235

(17,710,863)

19,008,162
(1,103,034)

EDINETOOOO
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109,033,975
(25,507, 356)
11,405,235

(17,710,863)

59,315,863

17,905,128

77,220,991
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©

12

2022

11,829,381
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2023 2022
( ) ( )
2,708,215 2,256,919
13.75
2022 : 58,119
2023 2022
( ) ( )
25,850,990 22,210,381
10.5 SOFR
2023 2022
( ) ( )
3,273,199 2,748,160
35
2023 2022
( ) ( )
2,958,992
12.7 LIBOR
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@) EM SP EWH
12 31 EMH
Bl B4 Bl B4
2023 2023 2022 2022
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
15,536,585 5,411,565 22,435,093 8,490,368
2023 12 31 EMH B1 76,106 2022 92,103 B4

8,876,503 2022 9,098,294

®
2023 2022
( ) ( )
25,000 26,354
149,700 259,358
174,700 285,712
18.
18.1
18.2
2023 12 31

2022 12 31
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18.3

2023 12 31

12
5,908,972 18,354,943 30,432,087 228,579,767 65,907,404 349,183,173 284,998,076 64,185,007
- FVTPL 3,222,074 10,752,981 88,165,720 102,140,775 102,140,775
* 265,533 63,722 329,255 329,255
21,031,463 21,031,463 9,636,356 11,395,107
27,205,968 18,354,943 33,654,161 239,332,748 154,136,846 472,684,666 284,998,076 73,821,453 113,865,137
12
(1,023,370) (1,023,370) (1,023,370)
(172,847) (172,847) (2,872,596) (44,609,294) (54,790,667) (102,618,251) (66,256,062) (25,389,550) (10,702,639)
(15,314) (3,471,622) (3,486,936) (3,486,936)

(7,753,790) (7,753,790) (7,753,790)
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(1,211,531) (172,847) (2,872,596) (44,609,294) (66,016,079) (114,882,347) (66,256,062) (25,389,550) (22,966,735)
25,994,437 18,182,096 30,781,565 194,723,454 88,120,767 357,802,319 218,472,014 48,431,903 90,898,402
2022 12 31
12
26,904,268 47,133,370 82,838,924 131,162,586 232,220,112 520,259,260 359,959,421 88,924,844 71,374,995
- FVTPL 11,800,492 5,805,609 7,608,835 68,929,826 94,144,762 94,144,762
* 21,519 94,148 115,667 115,667
68,902 9,324,090 9,392,992 9,392,992
39,694,238 39,694,238 17,618,162 22,076,076
78,489,419 62,263,069 90,447,759 131,162,586 301,244,086 663,606,919 359,959,421 115,935,998 187,711,500
12
(1,138,529) (1,138,529) (1,138,529)
(1,069,442) (313,831) (31,956, 315) (45,213,852) (6,217,990) (84,771,430) (50,929, 848) (26,219,974) (7,621,608)
(73,558) (75,400) (3,298,406) (3,447,364) (3,447,364)
(15,402,971) (367,164) (2,439,963) (18,210,098) (18,210,098)
(17,684,500) (756,395) (31,956,315) (45,213,852) (11,956, 359) (107,567,421) (50,929,848) (26,219,974) (30,417,599)
60,804,919 61,506,674 58,491,444 85,948,734 289,287,727 556,039,498 309,029,573 89,716,024 157,293,901
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0.25

2023 12 31 2022
484,319 2022 897,160 2022 484,319
2022 897,160
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18.4

PD

LGD

PD
LGD

PD
S&P
S&P
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2023 2022
( ) ( )
349,183,173 520,259,260
102,140,775 94,144,762
329,255 115,667
9,392,992
21,031,463 39,694,238
472,684,666 663,606,919
EAD
IFRS ECL
S&P
SME PD LGD
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LGD PD
PD LGD
S&P SME SME SME
A- PD B B- PD
S&P PD
12
S&P AMA  CCC- 19
S&P
2023 2022
AAA 0.0040% 0.0040%
AA+ 0.0065% 0.0065%
AA 0.0120% 0.0123%
AA- 0.0255% 0.0255%
A+ 0.0401% 0.0402%
A 0.0576% 0.0577%
A- 0.0790% 0.0799%
BBB+ 0.1146% 0.1188%
BBB 0.1556% 0.1609%
BBB- 0.2462% 0.2562%
BB+ 0.3467% 0.3613%
BB 0.5814% 0.5965%
BB- 1.0975% 1.1151%
B+ 2.1962% 2.2149%
B 3.3836% 3.5600%
B- 6.7629% 7.1965%
cce+ 13.2538% 13.8888%
cce 25.9849% 26.8117%
cce- 50.9655% 51.7731%
D 100% 100%
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2023 12 31

866,407,248 (91,915,614) 774,491,634 (517,224,075) 257,267,559 524,348,489

102,140,775 (10,702,638) 91,438,137 91,438,137 91,438,137

2022 12 31
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P-1

2022

2023

919,946,440

79,477,909

P-1

P-3

2022

(69,695,528) 850,250,912
79,477,909
P-1  P-3
105
12 31

102/216

EDINETOOOO

OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
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(491,023,816) 359,227,096 391,123,927
79,477,909 79,477,909
2023
10,000
2023 2022
( ) ( )
77,712
20,462,542 38,818,388
568,921 798,138
21,031,463 39,694,238
2023 2022
( ) ( )
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329,255 115,667
-12
2023 2022
( ) ( )
9,392,992
-12
2023 12 31
BBB-
115,539,542 115,539,542 B- BB+
77,883,770 581,068,322 658,095,092 CCC+
77,883,770 696,607,864 774,491,634
2022 12 31
55,759 55,759 BBB-
17,169,517 117,488,496 134,658,013 B- BB+
2,041,875 66,944,959 732,762,416 801,749,250 cce+
19,267,151 66,944,959 850,250,912 936,463,022
Afr
798,138 2022 798,138
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18.9
12 31

40

2022
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2023 2022
2023 2022
() ()
1 19 11
2 14 9
3 7 6
4 7 5
5 7 5
6 6 5
40 59
2022 59 76 2022 75
40 2022 59
Bl B2 B3 B4
2022 13
13 B2
B1 B3 B4
31
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18.6
90 B2
B2 3
30 30
30
2023 12 31
12
- 5,908,972 18,354,943 30,432,087 228,579,767 65,907,404 349,183,173
3,222,074 10,752,981 88,165,720 102,140,775
265,533 63,722 329,255
21,031,463 21,031,463
27,205,968 18,354,943 33,654,161 239,332,748 154,136,846 472,684,666
12
(1,023,370) (1,023,370)
(172,847) (172,847) (2,872,596) (44,609,294) (54,790, 667) (102,618,251)
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(15,314) (3.471,622) (3.486,936)
* (7.753,790) (7.753,790)
- (357,819,161) (357,819,161)
(1,211,531) (172,847) (2.872,596) (44,609,294) (423,835, 240) (472,701,508)
25,994,437 18,182,096 30,781,565 194,723,454 (269,698,393) (16,842)
KYC
2025
2026 2023 131,000,000
2022 12 31
12

- 26,904,268 47,133,370 82,838,924 131,162,586 232,220,112 520,259,260

11,800,492 5,805,609 7,608,835 68,929,826 94,144,762

21,519 94,148 115,667

68,902 9,324,090 9,392,992

39,604,238 39,604,238

78,489,419 62,263,069 90,447,759 131,162,586 301,244,086 663,606,919

12
(1,138,529) (1,138,529)
(1,069,442) (313,831)  (31,956,315) (45,213,852) (6,217,990) (84,771,430)
(73,558) (75,400) (3.,298,406) (3.447,364)
* (15,402,971) (367,164) (2.,439,963) (18,210,098)
- (16,220,424)  (15,093,689) (524,752,572) (556,066, 685)
(33,904,924)  (15,850,084)  (31,956,315) (45,213,852) (536,708,931) (663,634,106)
44,584,495 46,412,985 58,491,444 85,948,734 (235,464,845) (27,187)
KYC
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2025

2026 2022 92,000,000
32,000,000
18.7
2023 12 31
2023 2023 2023
( ) ( ) ( )
841 841
838,203 (483,716) 354,487
294 294
2022 12 31
2022 2022 2022
( ) ( ) ( )
700 700
952,078 (728,783) 223,295
2,209 (765) 1,444
2023 12 31 10 2022 10
10
2023 2022

107/216



18.8

18.9
2023

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

( ) ( )
+/- 84 +/- 70
+/- 35,448 +/- 22,330
+/- 29 +/- 144
2023 2023 2022 2022
7,786,674 2.18%
1,419,517 0.40% 255,566 0.05%
3,222,086 0.90% 17,010,787 3.06%
5,532,046 0.99%
55,731 0.01%
7,978,549 2.23% 15,213.329 2.74%
76,098,908 21.27% 21,044,051 3.78%
429,025 0.12%
549,450 0.10%
15,197,305 4.25% 25,645,839 4.61%
10,213,326 2.85% 17,051,581 3.07%
1,213,703 0.34%
4,949,999 0.89%
4,958,545 1.39% 22,130,983 3.98%
807,979 0.15%
120,849,783 33.77% 180,816,919 32.52%
6,083,194 1.70% 7,706,706 1.39%
3,151,036 0.88% 3,632,563 0.65%
50,342 0.01% 8,448,860 1.52%
37,444,080 10.46% 29,943,212 5.38%
44,517,309 12.44% 19,211,878 3.45%
2,261,660 0.63% 1,469,518 0.26%
12 31 2022 12 31 2.5
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2023 2022
2022
2023 2022
() ()
32 15
21 9
17
11
12 10
4
4
18
18 2022 23
18 2022 18
2023 12 31
2023 2022
( ) ( )
94,144,762 128,633,455
18,895,429 (19,576,253)
(4,668,121) (6,863,742)
2,160,597 2,076,629
17,407,747 42,625,994
(28,234,320) (52,751,321)
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1,751,467
683,214
102,140,775 94,144,762

2023
102,140,775
2022
94,144,762
FVTPL
2023

102,140,775 - - 102,140,775
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- 94,144,762

2022
94,144,762
19.
2020 30
20.
2023 2022 12 31

21.

Fire Sale
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2024 31 14,246,910

18,000,000
2023 12 126.92 2024
108.63
2023 12 31
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
(Expressed in United States dollars)

ASSETS

Loans receivable at amortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Amount due from broker

Other receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities

Loans payable
Redemption payable
Other payables
Accrued expenses

Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating sharas)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Note

m'ﬁhmm

8(a)
14

8(b)
7

EDINETOOOO
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Page &

2023 2022

uso ust
349,183,173 520,259,260
102,140,775 94,144,762
21,031,463 39,694,238

- 9,392,992

346,097 142,854
472,701,508 663,634,106
102,618,251 84,771,430
7,753,790 18,210,098
3,486,936 3,447,364
1,023,370 1,138,529
114,882,347 107,567,421
357,819,161 556,066,685

Authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Gﬂi}%- :

A TR I . s sasns s mama manma mana
Director
Michael Pearson

Doculignid by

aw BRI o s sa cm s ba e nanana na na
Director
Mitchell Alan Barrett

The notes on pages 10 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Note 2023 2022

usD uso

Investment income
Interest income o(a) 89,933,812 91,917,632
Realised fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss Ac) (4,668,121) (6,863,742)
Unrealised fair value gain/(loss) on financials asset at fair value
through profit or loss (9] 18,895,429 (19,576,253)
Profit margin on loans receivable at fair value through profit or
loss 8(b) 2,160,597 2,076,629
Other income 10 339,587 564,648
Net investment income 106,661,304 68,118,914
Expenses
Increase in expected credit losses 5 150,585,345 121,148,509
Management fees 17 (a) 10,024,767 13,537,473
Interest expense 11 11,306,895 10,344,546
Other operating expenses 12 1,991,821 1,958,184
Total operating expenses 173,908,828 146,988,712
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares from operations (67,247,524) (78,869,798)

The notes on pages 10 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE

PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
the beginning of the year

Payment an redeemable participating
shares redeamed

Decrease in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares
from operations

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at the
end of the year

The notes on pages 10 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.

115/216

556,066,685

(131,000,000}

(67,247,524)

2022
UsD

726,936,483

(92,000,000)

(78,869,798)



EDINETOOOO

OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash utilised in operations 15
Decrease in loans receivable — amortised cost

Decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

(Increasa)/decrease in other receivables

Decrease in accrued expenses

Proceeds received from finance obtained Bla)
Decrease in amount receivable from broker

Increase/ (decrease) in other payables

Repayments of finance obtained Bla)
Loan payable written off

Cash generated from operating activities

Interest received

Profit margin receivad

Interest paid on loans payable 8(a)
Net cash flow provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of redeemable participating shares redeemed 14

Met cash used in financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Page 9

2023 2022

uso usD
(11,677,002)  (14,931,009)
97,374,182 78,053,364
6,778,361 8,765,383
(203,243) 2,219427
(115,156) (303,467)
67,747,189 25,974,151
9,392,992 5,864,655
39,573 (112,913)
(46,017,800) (42,141,717)
{1”}3“?{6’1) n
112,511,425 64,387,874
13,048,163 11,338,174
1,613,532 1,353,544
(4,379,587) (3.040,274)
122,793,533 74,045,718
(141,456,308)  (80,688,888)
{141,456,308)  (B80,688,888)
(18,662,775)  (6,643,170)
39,694,238 46,337,408
21,031,463 39,694,238

The notes on pages 10 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B ORGANISATION AND PURPOSE

Barak Fund SPC Limited (the "Company™) is an open-ended investment company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company on 24 September 2008 and registered as a Segregated Portfolio
company under the provisions of the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands. As a Segregated Portfolio
company under Cayman Islands law, the Company can operate Segregated Portfolios with the benefit of
statutory segregation of assets and liabilities between each Segregated Portfolio. As of 31 December 2023,
the Company has seven active Segregated Portfolios (2022: 7) of which Barak Structured Trade Finance
Segregated Portfolio (the” Fund™) is one of the Segregated Portfolios.

Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio (the "Fund” or "Segregated Portfolio™) is market
neutral providing asset backed debt in trade finance transactions. The Fund does not take proprietary
positions. Financed commaodities generally incorporate all risk asset insurance and collateral monitoring.

The Investment Manager of the Fund is Barak Fund Management Limited ("BFML or the Investment
Manager") and the Administrator is Vistra Altermative Investments (Mauritius) Limited.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below,

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise their judgement in the process of applying
the Fund’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed below,

As result of post COVID-19 impact management has noted a significant portion of its borrowers” showing
signs of cashflow and liquidity problems due to supply chain disruption and economic downturn, which
resulted in borrowers’ defaulting on their repayment agreements. These matters indicate the existence of
material uncertainty in relation to going concern, which may cast significant doubt about the Fund's ability
to continue as 2 going concern. The directors of the Fund suspended the voluntary redemption rights of
shareholders in the Fund on 30 March 2020 to protect the Portfolio’s value to ensure that all shareholders
in it were treated equally. From the date of the suspension to the date of signing of the financial statements,
the directors have ensured that the Fund's Investment Manager has continued to manage the investment
portfolio of the Fund with a view to maintaining investor value and protecting the asset base of the Portfolio.

The directors, on advice from the Investment Manager, do not currently believe that the circumstances
that gawve rise to the suspension are likely to cease to exist in the short to medium term {being at least 18
manths from date of signing of the financial statements) and therefore the suspension will very likely remain
in place for at least that period, maybe longer.

To maximise shareholder value, the Investment Manager intends to realise the lpans recenqable in a
controlled manner rather than on a "fire-sale” basis, This process will, over time, convert the assets to
cash.

The Portfolio will then, via a process of compulsory redemnptions, return distributable cash to investors on
a pro-rata basis as part of the Portfolio’s exit strategy.

Management is dedicated to sustaining a transparent outlook and providing a solid foundation during the
current phase of the Fund's life cycle.

All references to net assets throughout this document refer to net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares unless otherwise stated.

All amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest United States dollar,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and significant judgement relating to going concern, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under current circumstances. Actual results may differ from thess
estimates.

Judgements
Estimates and underlying assumgptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the maost significant effects
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is as below:

Establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, determining the methodology for incorporating forward -looking information into
the measurement of expected credit losses (" ECL™) and selection and approval of models used to measure
ECL.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment is as below:

Expected credit losses of financial instruments: determination of inputs into the ECL measurement model,
including key assumptions used in estimating recoverable cash flows and incorporation of fonward-looking
information.

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or foss: use of unobservable inputs, being the
probability of recoverability of the loan.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial
statements,

Investment income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method,
Amaortised Cost using the Effective Interest Rate Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant year. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected
life of the financial instrument, or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial lability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIMUED)
Investmant income (continued)

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial
statements.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired ("POCT") financial assets — assets that are credit-impaired at
initial recognition — the Fund calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based
on the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact
of expected credit losses in estimated future cash flows. The cakculation includes all facility fees and
drawdown fees paid or received betwesen parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Facility fees and drawdown fees range
from 0.5% to 1.5% of the disbursed amount.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets, except for:

(a) POCI financial assets, for which the original credit-adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost of the financial asset; and

(b) Financial assets that are not "POCT' but have subsequently become credit-impaired (or “stage 37), for
which interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised cost (i.e.net
of the expected credit losses provision).

Profit margin

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the
period in which it arises.

Managemaeant and Performance fees

The Investment Manager receives a fixed fee of 2.0% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund plus
a performance fee of 20% of the annual increase in the Met Asset Value of the Fund subject to a hurdle
rate equal to the secured overnight financing rate 1-month average "SOFR”. If the annual increase in the
Met Asset Value Is less than SOFR, no performance fee is payvable, Once the hurdle rate is exceeded, the
performance fee is payable on the entire performance. The fixed fee is calculated and charged monthly in
arrears and the performance fee is calculated and charged quarterly in arrears. The performance fee is
calculated based on the Net Asset Value as determined by the administrator in accordance with the Articles
of Association and not based on the audited net asset value as determined by the auditor, If, when the
audit is completed the audited net asset value is lower than the year-end MNAV as produced by the
administrator, the Company has the right to draw down from the escrow account, the amount of the
overpayment of performance fees. The performance fee is calculated in a manner which ensures that
appropriate adjustments are made to accommodate the inflows and outfiows of capital during each fiscal
year resulting from subscriptions and redemptions. Once management and performance fees have been
crystalized in the Fund, it is at the discretion of the Manager to pay it over,

Experises

Expenses are accounted in the statement of comprehensive income on an accrual’s basis and in accordance
with the relevant agreements,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Faorefgn currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Fund's financial statements are measured using the United States dollar ("US dollar”
or” USD™) as, in the opinion of Management, the US dollar best represents the primary economic
environment in which the Fund operates. The Fund has also adopted the US dollar as its presentation
currency. The US dollar has been determined as the functional currency as this is the predominant currency
of the investor base.

(b} Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies, which occurred during the year, are translated into U5 dollars at the rate
prevailing on the transaction date. Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into US dollars
at the rate prevailing at the year-end date. Profits and kosses on foreign currency translations are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and lhabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in statement of comprehensive income, Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of ancther entity.

{a) Classification and initial measurement

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities, and
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items, The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories, as set out in IFRS 9

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income ("OCI™) or
through profit or loss), and;
= those to be measured at amaortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. For a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost
or fair value through ("FVOCIY), it needs to give rise to cash flows that are "solely payments of principal
and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test
and is performed at an instrument level.

The Fund’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. At initial recognition, the Fund measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL™), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash
flows and sell, the Fund assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (the "SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Fund considers whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending ammangement i.e., interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is
consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms intraduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continuved)

Financial assels (continued)

(b} Subsequent measureament

+ Financial assets at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from the financial
assets is included in interest income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or boss arising from
derecognition is recognised directly in statement of comprehensive income and presented in gains/(losses)
in the statement of comprehensive income on derecognition. Expected credit losses are presented as a
separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income. The Fund's financial assets at amortised cost
include loans receivable, loan receivable from related party, other receivables, amount due from broker
and cash and cash equivalents (at cash value) which are subsequently measured as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method and are presented net of expected credit losses.

+ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCT are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in “Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash egquivalents

For presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
hedd at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Loan receivable from related party

Loan receivable from related party is recognised at amortised costs using the effective interest rate method
less any expected credit losses.

Amount due from broker

The amount due from broker represents cash available in a financial institution and is recognised at fair
value through profit or loss in the statement of financial position. The Company is using a related party
Special Purpose Vehicle to liquidate the collateral on its behalf. The price risk has been mitigated via a
hedging agreement entered by the Company on behalf of the borrower and the financial institution,
Macquarie bank. The Company does not take any derivative risk in the hedge transaction and neither incurs
any loss or gain.

Related parly
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing,
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any directors (whether executive

or otherwise). The non-executive directors of the Fund are categorised as key management personnel.
Refer to Naote 17(e) for further detail,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

{c) Expected credit losses

The Fund measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for cash and cash
equivalents, other receivables, amount due from broker and loan receivable from related party measured
at amortised cost on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition. Loan
receivable from related parties have been restructured and the Fund is receiving repayments monthly.

The Fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The expected credit losses methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

In the Fund, thers are four types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit losses model:

+ Loans recelvable at amortised cost
» Other receivables
« (Cash and cash equivalents

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). Credit impaired financial assets
are those for which one or more events that have a detrimental effect on the estimated future cash flows
have already occurred.

Recoverability assessment for stage 3 lpans

Refer to note 5 for an explanation on assessment of recoverability for stage 3 loans,

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Fund in addressing the requirements of IFRS 9 are:
Significant increase in credit risk ("SICR™

The following factors are considered when determining SICR:

e Significant adverse changes in regulatory, business, financial and/ or economic conditions in which
the borrower operates;

Actual or expected restructuring;

Actual or expected significant adverse change in operating results of the borrower;

Significant change in collateral value which is expected to increase risk of default; or

Early signs of cashflow/ liquidity problems such as unexplained delay in servicing of trade creditors/
loans.

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-looking information and is performed at the counterparty
level and on a periodic basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and reviewed periodically for
appropriateness by the independent credit risk team.

The Fund provides alternative credit solutions to the counterparties in the portfolio because access to
traditional credit is generally not available to these counterparties. Therefore, the borrowers require
alternative solutions and may require restructuring more frequently than the segment of the borrowing
population that is serviced through traditional banking lines.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIMUED)
Financial instruments (continved)

Financial assate fcontinuad)

{c) Expected credit losses (continued)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assats

The Fund defines a financial instrument as in default:

1. when the borrower is unlikely to meet the pay criteria, which indicates that the borrower is in
significant financial difficulty. These are instances where:
e The borrower is in long-term forbearance
e  The borrower is insolvent
e The bormower is in breach of financial covenant(s) and efforts to rectify the breach have not
been successful
» It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
e The borrower is in default to repay the facility

2. When the Investment Manager exercises its step-in rights of the borrower’s entity that was pledged
to the Fund to liquidate the underlying commodity or to restructure the asset for sell down to other
institution to recoup the amount borrowed from the Fund.

The criteria above has been applied to all financial instruments held by the Fund and are consistent with
the definition of default used for internal credit risk management purposes. The default definition has been
applied consistently to model the Probability of default ("PD™), Exposure at default ("EAD™) and Loss Given
Default ("LGD™) throughout the Fund's expected loss calculations.

Maagsuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions, and estimation technigues
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. ECLs are basad on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Fund expects to

receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, The expected cash flows will inclede cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is credit-impaired. Expected
credit losses are the discounted product of the probability default, exposure at default and loss given
default, defined as follows:

* The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per
“Definition of default and credit-impaired assets” above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD),
or ower the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

* EAD is based on the current exposure. This is because the Fund usually provides uncommitted
facilities and loans for specific purposes that can be monitored. If a borrower requests another
disbursement on a facility, this provides a credit intervention point to ensure that the conditions of
the disbursement have been met and the required security has been provided.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

{c) Expected credit losses (continued)

e The Fund does not provide overdraft type revolving facilities, which does not require an intervention
point by the Fund and hence does not include remaining undrawn facilities in the calculation of
EAD. Despite the above, there are a small number of facilities that have been provided to clients
on a committed basis. In this case, if the facilities are not fully drawn at yvear end, the Fund uses
the facility limit, and not the EAD, in the calculation of ECL.

s LGD represents the Fund's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies
by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit
support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD at each review date and for each individual
exposure. These three components are multiplied to datermine an ECL.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying the S&P maturity profile to the current 12-month PD. The maturity
profile looks at how defaults develop on 2 portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of the loans, The maturity profile is based on historical observed data from S&P and is assumed to
be the same acress all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band, The S&P model is supported by
historical analysis.

For the 12-month and lifetime EAD in place recorded for the Fund uses the current exposure since it
provides uncommitted facilities and has conditions to subsequent drawdowns (intervention points) that
allows the Fund to not disburse if conditions have not been met or the credit quality of the borrower or
transaction has deteriorated.

Forward-tooking economic information is implicitly included in PD and LGD by ensuring that the rating and
loss rates reflect the general outlook for the specific loan. The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation
— such as how collateral values change etc. — are monitored and reviewed on a regular basis. There have
been no significant changes in the estimation techniques and significant assumptions made during the
reporting period.

LGD override

LGD override is typically used for working capital facilities that are short-term in nature and for term loans
where security is not supportive of lower LGD. These facilities are typically supported by underlying

coltateral that can be realised much quicker (inventory and/or trade receivables). Accordingly, management
has considered LGD of 20%: - 507 depending on the kind of exposure.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fimancial instruments (continued)

Financial assats {continved)

{c) Expected credit losses (continued)

Forward-fooking information incorporated in the ECL assessments

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate forward-looking information. The
forward-looking information, its related economic variables and associated impact an the PD, EAD and LGD
vary by financial instrument. Expert judgment has been applied in this process. The Fund's macro-economic
outiook incorporated in the counterparties credit rating and includes specific forward-looking economic
considerations for the individual counterparty. The credit rating thus reflects the adjusted counterparty risk
for the Fund's expectation of future economic and business conditions. Further adjustments based on point-
in-time market date, are made to the LGDs assigned to each counterparty to produce PDs and ECL
representative of existing market conditions.

Sensithvity analysis of forwand-looking impact on expected credit losses

Management assessed and considered the sensitivity of the expected credit losses against the forward-
looking economic conditions at a counterparty level. The S&P credit rating incorporates forward-looking
information. The weighting is reflected in both the determination of a significant increase in credit risk, as
well as the measurement of the resulting expected credit losses for the individual counterparty. Therefore,
the impact of forward-looking economic conditions is embedded into the total expected credit losses for
each counterparty and cannot be stressed or separated out of the overall expected credit losses.

The Fund incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of
an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL. The Fund
formulates three economic scenarios: a base case, which is the central scenario, one upside and one
downside scenario. External information considered includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities, supranational organisations and selected private-sector
and academic forecasts.

2023

Macro-economic factor Base case Upside Downside
% % %

GOP growth 19.45 24.31 14.59

Energy index (61.16) (45.87) {76.48)

Non-energy index {5.40) (3.06) (7.75)

2022

Macro-economic factor Base case Upside Downside
% %o %

GDP growth 17.24 21.55 12.93

Energy index (41) (27.78) (54.22)

Non-energy index (20.47) (15.35) (25.59)
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fimancial instruments (continved)

Financial assels (continued)

(d) Medification of financial assets

The Fund sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers.
When this happens, the Fund assesses whether the new terms are substantially different to the original
terms. The Fund does this by considering, among others, the following factors:

= If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the medification merely reduces the contractual
cashflows to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay;

« Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/equity-based return that
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan;

« Significant change in the interest rate;

« Change in the currency the loan is denominated in; or

+« Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Fund derecognises the original financial asset and recognises
the ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for expected credit losses
calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred. However, the Fund also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to
be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by
the debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are
also recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as a gain or loss on derecognition. If the terms
are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition, and the
Fund recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and
recognises a modification gain or loss in statement of comprehensive income. The new gross carrying
amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or
credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or orginated credit-impaired financial assets). The
impact of modifications of financial assets on the expected credit loss calculation is discussed in Note 5.

The ECL is calculated before terms are modified.

Distressed restructures

Such restructuring activities include extended payment term arrangements, payment holidays and payment
forgiveness. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgement
of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous
review. Restructuring is most applied to term loans.

Mon distressed restructures

In instances where the Fund reschedules a credit agreement not in distress, the contractual cash flows are
negatiated with the client. Where the net present value is different under the new agreement a madification
gain or loss is recognised. This loss is included within expected credit losses.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assels (continued)

(d) Modification of financial assets (continued)

Mon distressed restructures (continued)

The risk of default of such assets after modification is assessed at the reporting date and compared with
the risk under the original terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial and so does
not result in derecognition of the original asset. The Fund monitars the subsequent performance of modified
assets, The Fund may determine that the credit risk has significantly improved after restructuring, so that
the assets are moved from Stage 3 or Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL) to Stage 1 {12-month ECL).

(e) Curing

Conbinuous assessment is required to determine whether the conditions that led to a loan receivable being
credit impaired (i.e., stage 3) still exist, In the case of financial assets with quarterty or longer dated
repayment terms, the classification of a financial asset out of stage 3 may be made after an evaluation by
the Realisation Committee, such evaluation will consider qualitative factors in addition to compliance with
payment terms and conditions of the agreement. Qualitative factors include compliance with covenants
and compliance with existing financial assats terms and conditions.

Where it has been determined that a loan receivable no longer meets the criteria for SICR, the financial
asset will be moved from stage 2 back to stage 1 prospectively. This has not occurred in the year 31
December 2023 nor 2022,

(f) Write-off policy
The Fund provides for financial assets, in whole, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and
has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reascnable
expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement activity and (i) where the Fund's recovery method
is foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering in full,

Only when the Fund has exhausted all practical and legal efforts to recover a loan and the Fund's Realisation
Committee has advised that there is no expectation of any further recovery, does the Fund write off an
asset in full.

The Fund still seeks to recover amounts it is legally owing in full, but which have been partially provided
for, due to no reasonable expectation of full recovery. The net impact after credit mitigation was USD Nil
(2022: USD Nil).

The Fund may fully provide for financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. The outstanding
contractual amounts of such assets written off during the year ended 31 December 2023 was USD
128,118,472 (2022: USD 8,405,332). Attempts have been made via enforcement / court judgement and
enforcement of assats, However, given that the companies have either been liquidated or legal costs
outweigh economic benefit from recovery, Management have provided for the full amount and have written
these off in full.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continuea}

(g) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Fund of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Fund's statement of financial position) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e The Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and
revwards of the asset, or (b) the Fund has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Fund continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing
involvernent. In that case, the Fund also recognises an associated liability. The transferred assets and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and cobligations that the Fund has
retained. Continuing Involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Fund could be reguired to repay.

Financial liabifities
(a) Classification and initial measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss or at amortised cost. All financial liabilities are recoanised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Fund’s financial liabilities
consist of accrued expenses, loans payables, other payables, and net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at redemption value.

(b) Subsequent measurement

Payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interast method.

(c) Derecognition

Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expines,
When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original Eability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financia! instruments (continuved)
Cash and cash aquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,

Loans receivalie

Loans receivables are recognised on the implementation date specified within the relevant loan contract
and derecognised at the repayment date also specified within the same loan contract unless a further
superseded contract has adjusted the conditions related to the repayment date,

Loans receivables are initially recognised at fair value plues transaction costs. Loans receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any expected credit
losses,

Loans and otfver payables

Loans and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
using the effective interast mathod.

Sake and repurchase agreements

Barak has entered repurchase agreements as part of its financing activities. Loans ceded under participation
agreements are disclosed as loans payable. Underlying loans ceded under repurchase agreements are not
derecognised by the Fund, The differences between the purchase and sale prices are treated as interest
and accrued using the effective interest method.

Redeemable participating shares

The Fund issues four classes of redeemable participating shares (B1, B2, B3 and B4), which are redeemable
at the holder's option. Share classes have identical rights but different terms such as lockup pericd which
is 3 years for B2, There is no lockup pericd on the class B3 redeemable participating shares or the Class
B4 redeemable participating shares. Such shares are classified as financial liabilities as of 31 December
2023.

The redeemable participating shares can be put back to the Fund on each dealing day, after giving three
months written notice, for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Fund's net asset value. The net asset
value of the Fund will be equivalent to all the assets less all the liabilities of the Fund, which are attributable
to the share class, at the relevant valuation day. The valuation date is the first business day of each month.
The redeemable participating share is carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the year-end
date if the shareholder exercised his right to put the share back to the Fund. The redeemable participating
shares are non-voting and may be issued in different classes. Redeemable participating shares are issued
and redeemed at prices based on the Fund's net asset value per unit at the time of issue or redemption.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continved)
Capital contribution received in advance

Capital contributions received in advance are subscriptions received after the first of December but before
the first of January of the following year. Subscriptions are only effective on the first day of the month.

Standards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 January 2023

Thiare are no standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2023 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

New standards, amendments, and interpretations effective after 1 January 2023 and have not
been early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2023 and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements.
Mone of these are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022

usD USD

Cash at bank 9,367,077 20,125,708
Fixed deposit 9,636,356 17,540,450
Call deposit 2,028,030 2,028,080
21,031,463 39,694,238

The cash and cash equivalents are measured at cash value. This i considered to approximate the fair
value. Cash and cash equivalents are classified as stage 1.

Restricted cash

The cash and cash equivalents disclosed above and in the statement of cash flows include USD 294 (2022:
UsD 2,209) which are custedied with Stanbic bank and is subject to regulatery restrictions and are therefore
not available for general use by the Fund.

4{a) AMOUNT DUE FROM BROKER

2023 2022
usp Uso
Chosing balance as at 31 December - 9,392,992

The above relates to the cash available in the bank account of the Fund and is used to hedge against the
market price of the Iron Ore on behalf of one of the borrowers. The balance has been received during the

year.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE

2023 2022

uso ush

Gross loans receivable = Amortised cost 866,407,248 1,015,016,462
Expected credit losses (517,224,075) (494,757 ,202)

349,183,173 520,259,260
Gross financial assets at fair value through profit or loss® 102,140,775 94,144,762

451,323,948 614,404,022

*Gross financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to USD 102,140,775 comprise of a
loan restructuring, where one of the borrowers has assigned shares amounting to USD 3,222,073 to Barak
STF Trust through which the beneficiary is the Company. Refer to note 17 (b) for breakdown.

Gross loans receivable = Maximum exposure to credit risk measured

at amortised cost 866,407,248  1,015,016,462
Credit risk exposures fully mitigated through co-funding
agresments (91,915,614) (78,553,440)

774,491,634 936,463,022

Gross financial assets — Maximum exposure to credit risk measured

at fair value through profit or loss 102,140,775 094,144,762
Credit risk exposures fully mitigated through co-funding
agreements (10,702,637) (6,217,990)

91,438,138 87,926,772

Maximum exposure for which a credit kboss can be incurred for the
Fund 865,929,772  1,024,389,794

The loans payable relate to deals which have been co-financed. The risk and returns that the Fund bears are
effectively mirrored proportionately back to the co-financier as part of the participation agreement. A
participating certificate is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered where all commercial and
legal terms are agreed.

The co-funding agreaments have been assessed as credit mitigation/enhancement in terms of measuring the
ECL on the gross loans receivable. The credit losses an these portions of the gross loans will be borne by the
co-funders as the Fund will derecognize the liability to the co-funder at the point of write-off. The loans that
were co-funded were considered for derecognition, however due to non-contractual reimbursement received
the pass-through criteria was not met and the loans were not derecognized.
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5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

2023

Fund’s maximum exposure
to credit losses — Amortised
cost

ECL

Met exposure after co-funder
mitigation and ECL

2023

Stage 3 Maximum exposure to
credit losses - Amortised cost
ECL

Met exposure after co-funder
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
uspD usp uso uspD
- 77,883,770 696,607,864 774,491,634
- (3,969,385) (513,254,600) (517,224,075)
- 73,917,385 183,353,174 257,267,559
Stage 3
Investment
Manager Non-
Contractual exercised step in performing
rights loans Total
usD uspo uso usbD
597,620,944 53,065,426 45,921,494 696,607,864
(437,289,933) (36,201,374) (39,763,383) (513,254,690)
160,331,011 16,864,052 6,158,111 183,353,174

mitigation and ECL

EEEEEEEEE
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5. LOANS RECEIVABLE {CONTINUED)

2022

Fund’s maximum exposure
to credit losses = Amortised
cost

ECL

et exposure after co-funder
mitigation and ECL

2022

Stage 3 Maximum exposune
to credit losses - Amortised
cost

ECL

MNet exposure after co-funder
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
usb st LSD LSD
19,267,151 66,944,959 850,250,912 936,463,022
(217.917) (3.515,469) {491,023,816) (494,757,202)
19,049,234 63,429,490 359,227,006 441,705,820
Stage 3
Investment Mon-
Contractual  Manager exercised performing
Breaches step in rights loans Tatal
usD UsD LsD ush
664,063,840 124,268,523 61,917,549 820,250,912
(355,646,713) (78,490,521) {56,886,582) {491,023,816)
308,417,127 45,779,002 5,030,967 359,227,096

mitigation and ECL

Definition of stages

+ Stage 1 includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, client performing as per
agreement and 12-month expected credit losses (“ECL") are recognised.

+ Stage 2 includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition {unbess they hawve low credit risk at the reporting date) but that do not have objective evidence

of expected credit losses. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognised. This will also include assets that

were restructured.

+ Stage 3 includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. These

assets can either be classified as non-performing loans, where security is taken to tackle ether by court or

sell down or contractual breach due to delays in repayment and covenants.
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(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
R bil for st 3
Contractual breaches

For borrowers where there have been financial breaches, the Investment Manager typically works with the
client to explore different avenues to rectify the breach. This could either mean a restructuring of the debt
to!

A. Better suit the actual repayment terms and would match the actual trade cycle which could have been
differently presented at Credit Committee;

B. Adjust covenants given probable change in the economic environment in which the client is operating
where there are criteria that have materially changed from the time of approving the loan at Credit
Committee.

While the list can be exhaustive, the essence of the recoverability of the loan is tailor made for each clients
in order to be able provide adequate assistance to the client so that these breaches are rectified and ensure
that the trade is not at risk and also ensure that future trades are better structured to bring adequate yield
from aperation to not only service the loan and interest but also ensure sustainability of clients that will
enhance the relationship between the Fund and the borrower,

Major clients in this bucket are:

» Loan counterparty 1 is a facility used for the funding of zinc and other metal commaodities in South
Africa. The Due Diligence was completed in May 2024 and the report has raised concems regarding
water contamination which poses two main challenges. The first being that the water need to be
treated for the next 30 vears and secondly the contamination risk renders a significant part of the
project worthless for the buyer. The reports on the rehabilitation and gechydrological risk has
estimated the water treatment and rehabilitation cost to be in the region of ZAR 563M. As a
consequent the potential buyer has sent a revised settlement offer of ZAR110M compared to the
initial offer do ZAR 300M. The exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder and ECL,
amounts to USD 5,197,251 (2022: USD 32,072,228}, There has been no repayment from the
counterparty post year end.

» Loan counterparty 2 is a prepayment facility syndicated with reputational institutions in Congo. The
restructured agreement catered for 3 cargos a year where proceeds are used to repay the Fund.
The restructuring and repayments plan has so far been successful. The exposure should be fully
settled around Q2 2025, though this is dependent on oil prices and delivery performance. The
exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder and ECL, amounts to USD 20,451,397 (2022:
USD 29,943,212), Post year end repayment from the loan counterparty amounts to USD 910,809,

134/216



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 000000(E35219)
Doooooooooooodd

Page 28
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5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
ili fi loan in
Contractual breaches (continued)

« Loan counterparty 3 are African exposures with sovereign risk attached where the off taker is
primarily the government. There is a current discussion with the borrower's sponsor to agree on a
settliermant plan and in parallel, the legal action towards the Zambian government is still ongoing.
The exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder and ECL, amounts to USD 36,310,711
(2022: USD 28,645,677). There has been no repayment from the counterparty post year end.

= Loan counterparty 4 is a holding group of companies invested in the healthcare, apparel, foods,
and personal products sectors in emerging market economies. The original IPO plan was shelved
due to the subdued IFO market condition in Australia and the significant underperformance of one
of the main businesses. The underperforming business is undergoing a turnaround plan and the
sales effort will be revised towards Q3 2024 The exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-
funder and ECL, amounts to USD 18,000,000 (2022: USD 28,100,000). Post year end from the
loan counterparty was USD 4,070,828.

« Loan counterparty 5 is an exposure from a group in Kenya where the Investment Manager is
working on an exit solution with other major lenders who are primarily banking institutions. Baker
Tilly has been appointed to assess the recovery options and to coordinate an exit strategy for all
parties. The exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder and BCL, amounts to USD
15,152,614 (2022; USD 25,597,248). There has bean no repayment from the counterparty post
year end while additional ECL was raised due to the deterioration in the economic environment in
Kenya.

+ Loan counterparty 6 is a senior debt used for working capital for construction of a Bauxite mine in
Guinea. The mine sells its product mainly to Chinese off takers. With the recent positive market
price and outlook, it was agreed to remove the mine from care and maintenance and to restart the
mine which will allow longer term contract to sustain the recovery. The mine faces few challenges
in 2023 where the company encountered additional cost to dredge their port to prepare for
shipment and experienced a significant operational incident which necessitated a hold on all exports
for a month. Despite these challenges, the mine is now fully operational, and the bauxite price is
favorable. The sales process of mine has started and due diligence exercise is underway. The lender
group are aiming to conclude the commercial terms of a sale agreement by end of 2024, The
exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder and ECL, amounts to USD 7,978,549 (2022
UsSD 15,213,329). There has been no repayment from the counterparty post year end.
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5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Contractual breaches (continued)

« Loan counterparty 7 is a fruit juice processing and trading business with juicing plants in Ghana
and Brazil. Products include orange, passion fruit, acercla, pineapple amongst other tropical juices
which are sold primarily into Europe with primary storage in Rotterdam. They produce primarily
concentrates that are packaged in sterilised containers. The deal was presented to the Realisation
Committee where it was agreed to restructure the loan over three years with repayments coming
from free cash flow of the business, refinancing of existing working capital and further equity
injection or management buyout of Barak share sacurities. Term sheet has been agreed and lawyers
are currently drafting facility agreements. The exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder
and ECL, amounts to USD 16,992,683 (2022: USD 13,992 545). There has been USD 796,993
as repayment from the counterparty post year end.

« Loan counterparty B is a vanilla aggregating, curing and trading business that operates within
Madagascar with a warehousing facility and holding company based in Mauritius. The vanilla is
purchased from small scale farmers and graded according to purchaser's requirements. Barak
previously agresd a re — payment plan, but the plan failed due to volatility on the market. The
Government in Madagascar imposed a minimum sale price which was not competitive on the
international market. This led to a collapse in the vanilla market in Madagascar. Unfortunately,
when this minimum price was removed, the stock of old harvest and new harvest contributed to a
very high supply and the price has dropped drastically. Given the uncertainly on the market, the
auditor has fully marked the exposure as unrecoverable. We have recently received some offer to
dispose the vanilla product as a desp haircut. Same s being assassed by the Realisation Committee,
The exposure has been fully provided. There was no repayment post year end.

= Loan counterparty 9 is a company founded in South Africa with the purpose to construct an Iron
Ore Beneficiation plant to process raw grade magnetite to high grade concentrate for export to
customers in China. The plant is running at full capacity and repayment has started as per the
waterfall model, The exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder and ECL, amounts to
USD 9,221 453 (2022: USD 9,688,570). There has been repayment of USD 2,229,884 from the

counterparty post year end.

» Loan counterparty 10 is an African exposure with sovereign risk attached where the off taker is
primarily the government. There is a current discussion with the borrower’s sponsor to agree on a
sattlement plan and in paraliel, the legal action towards the relevant stakeholders are still ongoing.
The exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder and ECL, amounted to USD 7,806,880
(2022:7,802,163). There has been no repayment from the counterparty post year end.

» Loan counterparty 11 is a facility used for crude oil in Tanzania, While most of the exposure has
been fully settled, there is still an outstanding amount which will require further effort to recoup.
We currently have a potential buyer who is currently carrying out a due diligence exercise to buy
Barak claims. The exposure as of 31 December 2023 amounted, net of co-funder and ECL, to USD
6,083,193 (2022: 7,706,706). There has been no repayment from the counterparty post year
end.
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5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
it fi loan

Contractual breaches {continved)

« Loan counterparty 12 is a South African based coal miner and trader which is focused primarily on
expart, The deal has a faw legal challenges as the shareholders and operators are arguing on the
claim for the mining rights. The matter was at court and Barak was awarded a portion of the claim
and need to pursue further recoveries via personal guarantees with the promaoter. The exposure
as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder and ECL, amounted to USD 3,122,302 (2022:
7,403,958). There has been repayment of USD 173,538 post year end while additional ECL was
raised limited to the claim awarded by the court.

Investment Manager exercises step in rights

In some circumstances, trying to work with the borrowers does not always succeed and when there is value
at risk for any exposure, the Investment Manager would work to exercise its right to step into the trade to
execute and recoup the investment, This would mean taking over the operational side of the business to
liquidate in an orderly manner to derive benefit and yield to the investors. Such actions would mean that
the share pledges are being exercised or the stock is being taken over to be sold via an 5PV and would
require in most cases time, resources, and even additional capital to derive maximum return from the trade
while ensuring capital preservation. The Investment Manager would work the best possible route to recover
from the investment given the actual environment in which the client was operating and such actions could
be adjusted from time to time depending on circumstances.

= Loan counterparty 13 is an exposure linked to a coal based powerplant in Senegal. The deal was
successfully restructured and the last instalment due as per the settlement agreement was repaid post
year end. The exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder, amounts to USD 4,958,545
(2022: USD 32,440,2583). The exposure has fully settled post vear end.

« Loan counterparty 14 a South African based coal processor and trader with its primary business being
supplying energy into South Africa's largest electricity producer Eskom which generates close to 100%
of the country's power. There are regular repayments monthly which is expected to increase in the
next quarter following the merger between another similar business which aims to unlock more value
for the Fund and subsaquently to seek a sale to a third party to wind down the Fund's debt, The
exposure as of 31 December 2023, net of co-funder, amounts to USD 9,684,718 (2022: UsD
10,638,719). Post year end repayment from the loan counterparty amounts to USD 174,903,

« Loan counterparty 15 is an exposure linked to Iron Ore. The Company took possession of the low-
grade product to secure the collateral and invested in a beneficiation plant to increase the FE
component to extract better realisation value. The delivery of the product is intended for offtakers
mainly in China. During 2023, various stimulus package has influenced the iron price. Howewver, the
demand has not been to our expectation and the looming recession is not in favor of such commaodity,
In addition, there was a higher cost of sale coming mainly from an increase in freight cost about USD
10/t over the year. Other operating cost of beneficiation was also higher due to high diesel cost and
electricity costs. Looking ahead for the year 2024, although there will be some constant stimulus, it
does feel exhaustive with a rangebound price guidance for the 62FE. Stimulus measures have been
launched which has seen some positives for the Iron Ore pricing despite general consensus being that
the stimulus is very weak and are not even encugh to cover 10% of current housing supply. In house
view is that the market will be ultra volatile with stimulus time being high and post stimulus big drops.
From a cost perspective, the cost of electricity and cost of transport are higher which put pressure on
the margins. This a position that the IM will continue to manitor and work to find a quicker exit strategy
at the right time given that we are on the low side of the cycle. The exposure as of 31 December
2023, net of fair value loss, amounts to USD 85,457,505 (2022 USD 77,220,992). There was no
repayment from the lean counterparty post year end.
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5. LOANS RECEIVABLE {CONTIMUED)
Non-performing loans

These loans are typically borrowers where most if not all working solutions have been pursued to recoup
the investmant and interest but have failed to come to an agreement. These borrowers would have paid
partially the initial amount but unfortunately for several reasons, they are unable to continue amortize the
remaining balance and the only remaining option is legal recourse where the Investment Manager would
try to have a judgement on either personal properties or enforcement of guarantee. These are time
consuming avenues and if the legal cost outweighs the benefit of recouping any remaining balances, the
write off stage is being considered, Mon-performing loans for the year 31 December 2023, net of co-funder
and ECL amounted to USD 6,158,111 {2022: USD 5,030,967) net of expected credit losses. There has
been repayment of USD 143,373 post year end.

2023 2022
uso usD
Expected credit losses ("ECL") on 1 January 494,757,202 382,014,025
Loans written off* (128,118,472) (8,405,332)
Increase in ECL 150,585,345 121,148,509
ECL on 31 December 517,224,075 494 757,202

*Loans written off net of co-funder amounting to USD 128,118,472 (2022: USD 8405,332) includes
fourteen (2022: six) kan counterparties were approved by the Realisation Committee and according to
sattlement agreement. These loans were accounted in full as expected credit losses. Management believes
that it woulkd be very remote to recover anything further as court and legal costs would not make any
economic benefits.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 [CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECETVABLE [CONTINUED)
Gross loan balances net of co-funded portion
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 manth Expected Lifietirme ex pocted Credit impained
credit losses credit losses financial assets Total
WS usp usp uso
Dpening Balance on 1 January 2023 19,267,151 66,044,950 B50,150,912 636,463,022
Inbeest income net of oo-funder 717,530 10,938,811 G7, 653,297 79,350,038
Trarsier o credi impained fnancel st {58, 760) - 58,760 -
Financial assets transferred to STF* 79,262 - - 79,262
Financial assets (0o funded)onginated (3,804,276) - [306,732) (4,111,008)
Financial assets rapdad (16,204,307} - (92,9660901) {109,171, 208)
Wite-cifs - E (128,118,472 {128,118, 472)
Closing balance as of 31 December 2023 - 77,883,770 696,607,864 774,491,633

0 [ PT P T T EnEEEEE R .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENGED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Grogs Ioan balances net of co-funded portion
Gross loan balances net of co-funded portion
Stage 1 Ctage 2 Stage 3
12 month Expected Lifetime expected  Creddt impaired financial
credit losses oredt kesses Lt Total
uso UsD usD s
Opening Balance on 1 Januasy 2022 48,843,976 76,764,027 801,652,972 527,260,975
Interest income net of Co-funder 2,180,266 9.909.290 63,474,379 81,564,935
Transfer to credit impaired financial assets {12,279,773) . 12,278,773 -
Financial assets tramsferned to STF* - - -
Financial assets transferred from STF* . . . 5
Financisl assets originated 77580, 265 0,839,315 12,645,581 111,075,161
Financial assets repaid (96, 350.955) (40, 567 673) (37 474,085) (175,032.717)
Write-olfs {77 624) - {8,327,708) (8,405,332)
Clorsing balance &5 of 31 Degember 2022 19,267,151 66,944,959 E50,250,912 936,463,022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Credit risk exposures fully mitigated throegh co - funding agreements
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month expected  Lifetime expected credit  Credit impaired financial
credit losses losses. BsSets Total
usD uso [117s] usp
2023
Opering balance on 1
Januany 2023 (8,857,912) - (&9, 695,528) {78,553,440)
Closing balance as of 31
Dcernber 2023 22,361,014 » 69,554,600 91,915,614
Increasa/{decrease) in
co-funding 13,503,102 - {(140,928) 13,362,134
2022
Opening balance on 1
Janisary 2022 (14,253 6300 (17,145, 458) (62,231,638) (593,634,723}
Closing balance as of 31
Decernber 2022 BBET 912 - 60,655,528 78,553,440
Increase/[decrease]) n co-
funding (5,395,718) 7,463,893 [15,081,283)
Page 35
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(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Expected credit losses (continued)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetime
expected  expectedcredit  Creditimpaired
credit losses losses financial assets Total
usbD usbD usbD usb
Opening balance on 1 January 2023 217,917 3,515,469 491,023,816 494,757,202
Interest income net of co-funder 9,669 574,427 37,612,688 38,196,784
Transfer to credit impaired financial assets (28) - 28 -
Financial assets transferred to Barak Structured Trade Finance 1,809 - - 1,809
Segregated Portfolio
Increase/(decrease) in ECL - (120,511) 136,184,195 136,063,684
Financial assets originated (64,381) - 1,077,325 1,012,944
Financial assets repaid (164,986) - (24,524,890) (24,689,876)
Write-offs = B (128,118,472) (128,118,472)
Closing balance as of 31 December 2023 - 3,969,385 513,254,690 517,224,075

The loan book has been reconciled directly from opening position to closing position.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Expocted credit losses (continued )
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 maonkh
eapecied credit  Lifetime expected Credit impaired
erines crisdit bosses financial asgets Ttal
uso uso uso usD
Opering balance on 1 Jamary 2022 2,207,314 4,031,065 375,775,615 382,014,025
Interest income net of co-funder 26,086 A00,452 14,765,995 35,197,573
Transfer to credit impained financal assets {4,945, 1200 - 4,545,120 -
Financial assets transferred to Barak Structured Trade Finance
Segregated Porfolio - B .
Fingnciad assets transferned Trom Barak Structured Trade Finance
Segregated Portfolio * - - -
Increase)(decrease) in ECL 3,152,554 {2,011,451) 85,521,199 87,962,302
Financial assets originated 743213 1,064,332 1,235,038 3,072,583
Financiad assets repaid (£:88,506) - (4,195,443) {5,083,949)
Financial assets tramsferned 1o FYTPL - . - -
Wirite-olfs {77 524} s {8,327, 708) (8,405,337
Closng balance as of 31 December 2022 217,917 3515488 481,023,816 454, 757 202

I R EREEZEEE EEEEEEE EETEEEEE

Thae koan book has been recondled directly from apening position b dosing position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Reason or transférs between stages

In 2023, the Fund transferred “12-month ECL" amounting to USD 55,760 (2022: USD 4,945,120} and
Tifetime ECL” amounting to USD Nil (2022: USD Nil) to' ‘credit impaired financial assets” due to financial
breach and inability to meet the contractual terms.

Unlisted debt securities comprised of asset backed debt in agricuitural trade finance and food-related
transactions that constitute the primary business activity of the Segregated Portfolios of the Company.
Contractually these transactions were set in the form of repurchase financing agreements or structured
warking capital Ioan agreements or borrowing base structured facilities, bridge finance and term loan.
Underlying securities can be in the form of commodities, fixed assets, and share pledges. Collateral obtained
by the Fund under standard repurchase agreements are not recognized because the Borrower retains all the
risks and rewards based on the predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition are
therefore not met by the Borrower., The repurchase financing agreements or structured working capital koan
agreements or borrowing base structured facilities, bridge finance are calculated based on a desired
transaction yield considenng counterparty risk which could be both short term and long term as such the
transactions are considered to be financing transactions backed by collateral which can be in the form of
physical stocks or floating charge such as debtor's assignment and is classified as loans receivables, Interest
rates range between 5% and 30% per annum and are compounded in terms of each borrowing contract
amounting to USD 866,047,428 (2022: USD 1,015,016,462). The loans receivable is measurad at amortised
cost.

The Fund applies the S&P Global ("S&P") Small and Medium Enterprises ("SME") model for rating Probability
aof Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) purposes. Although the Fund has several types of borrowers
and loans in the portfolio, the Investment Manager chose the SME model as this applies to most of the
portfolio, was the most appropriate fit, in the Investment Manager's opinion, and would produce a result
similar to what S&P would publish for the counterparties that are rated. The Investment Manager’s options
for rating a portfolio of deals were either to purchase a rating model, like the S&F SME model that the
Investment Manager did, or develop an intemnal model based on Investment Manager's prior experience with
defaults in the portfolio. Unfortunately, the Investment Manager does not have a statistically significant
portfolio of counterparties or default history to make such a model viable or acceptable.

For PD purposes, the S&P SME model has quantitative and qualitative aspects. For the guantitative part,
Investment Manager captures financial information into the model from the latest financial information
available to them, preferably audited financial statements, or management accounts. This requires a proper
understanding of the financial inputs to determine how to input items into the model. The income statemeant
and statement of financial position are usually input in full but the critical items, like EBITDA, debt and equity
are used by the model to calculate certain debt ratios, which determine the rating. In inputting a counterparty
into the model, the Investment Manager also must capture the industry and country metric which is a
mandatory field in the model, The model also incorporates a Sovereign Intervention Owverlay, which is only
applicable if the counterparty rating is better than the rating of the country of risk. If this is the case, the
counterparty rating may be a reduced by few notches in line with the country rating (although not capped
to the country rating). Rating is done under certain circumstances, based on guarantors, insurance providers
ar off takers,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

For LGD purposes, Investment Manager captures loan information and the collateral associated with the
facility into the model. In this part of the model, the ranking of the facility is relevant (senior, subordinated)
and to note the amount of loans that rank ahead, pari-passu with and/ or subordinate to the loan. In addition
to loading loan specific collateral, the model also requires the input of collateral pledged to other pari-passu
lpans, The value was inputted for collateral depends on the nature of the collateral. For working capital
(stock, debtors), the full value per invoice and debtors according to the agreements (for e.g., debtors might
be < 90 days and specific debtors only). If it is not working capital values as per audited financials, the most
recent independent valuations for assels like property, equipment are usad.

The final output of the model is a rating from CCC- to AA4 and an LGD percentage, for example a rating of
B+ with an LGD of 20%. This information is usually input by a credit analyst and checked, verified, and
approved by one of the two senior credit independent members in the business.

The twa senior credit independent members in the team also have the ability to override the model if they
don't believe that the rating and/ or LGD is fair or justified. In most cases, these overrides have been to
adjust the rating and/ or LGD to a more conservative number (i.e., to increase the ECL).

6. OTHER RECEIVABLES

2023 2022

uso ushr

Amount receivable from related party (Note 17{a){(v) & 17{c)) 265,533 21,519
Other receivables* 63,722 094,148
Prepayment of expenses 16,842 27,187
346,097 142,854

*Other receivables represent a security deposit to a legal firm which expects to incur potential legal expenses
on nonperforming borrowers. The amount remains as a receivable to the Fund until the expenses are
incurred.

The other receivables are measured at amortised cost. Since the amount of ECL allowance on other

receivables is not material, there was no expected credit loss recognised. This is considered to approximate
the fair value,
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(CONTINUED)

7. ACCRUED EXPENSES

2023 2022

usp uso

Management fee 829,543 967,230
Audit fee 147,680 144,560
Administration fee 12,047 16,599
Directors’ fee 12,500 -
Fricing agent fea 19,100 7.640
FATCA and CRS fes 2,500 2,500
1,023,370 1,138,529

The accrued expenses are measured at amortised cost. This is considered to approximate the fair value.
Except for the audit fees and FATCA and CRS fees for the yvear ended 31 December 2023, the above accruals
were repaid after year end, Accruaks for year ended 31 December 2023 were Tully settled during 2023.

8. LOANS AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022
a) Loans payable uso uso
Loan counterparty 1 5,693,620 19,954,573
Loan counterparty 2 42,438,720 38,897,248
Loan counterparty 3 6,206,481 5,665,847
Loan counterparty 4 4,308,917 3,898,902
Loan counterparty 5 40,165,076 9,368,752
Loan counterparty & 532,238 1,278,956
Loan counterparty 7 3,273,199 2,748,160
Loan counterparty 8 - 2,958,992
Due to co-funders 102,618,251 84,771,430

The loans payable are term agreements which relate to deals that have been co-financed. The risk and
raturns that the Fund bears, is effectively mirrored proportionately back to the co-financier as part of the
participation agreement. A participating certificate is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered
where all commercial and legal terms are agreed. Refer to Note 5 for detail on co-funding. The loans payable
is measured at amortised cost. Provision for expected credit losses on co-funder balance for the year ended
31 December 2023 amounts to USD 38,162,852 (2022: USD 47,300,025).
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(CONTINUED)

8. LOANS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
a) Loans payable

Refer to note 5 for detail on co funding.

2023 2022

usD uso
Loans payable as of 01 January 84,771,430 96,634,723
Proceeds received from finance obtained 67,747,189 25,974,151
Repayments of finance obtained (46,017,800) (42,141,717)
Interest charged on loans payable 11,304,690 10,188,383
Interest paid on loans payable (4,379,587) (2,884,110)
Written off* (10,807,671) -
Loans payable as of 31 December 102,618,251 84,771,430

* An amount of USD 10,807,671 was written off during the year according to settlement agreement of the
underlying loan receivable counterparty.

b) oOther payables

2023 2022

usD uspD

Security deposit™ 2,761,626 2,761,626
Income received in advance = 44,332
Amount due to Agent 725,310 641,406
3,486,936 3,447,364

*Security deposit relates to insurance claim received on two of the counterparties due to inability to repay
their loan upon maturity. A legal case is currently under progress to recover full amount from the
counterparty. The amount due will be treated as a repayment of loan upon final settlement of loan receivable.

9. INVESTMENT INCOME

(a) Interest income

2023 2022
usoD usb

Interest income on loans receivable
at amortised cost 89,297,151 91,561,363
Facility fees 44,332 264,754
Interest on placement 590,579 89,515
Origination fees 1,750 2,000
89,933,812 91,917,632

The portion of the loan origination fees that relate to the creation of a financial asset are amertised over the
term of the loan on an effective interest basis.

Interest rates are between 5% and 30% (2022: 5% and 30%) per annum as per the relevant financing
contracts.
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9. INVESTMENT INCOME (CONTINUED)

(b) Profit margin

2023 2022
usp LsD
Profit margin from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,160,597 2,076,629

- - = -

The Fund earns a percentage of return as profit margin on monies loaned. The Fund is currently earmning a
359 (2022: 35%) total profit share when commaodities are sold. The profit share is calculated in respect of
each commadity transaction entered with the loan counterparty; a company incorporated in the United Arab
Emirates.

(c) Fair value gain on financials asset at fair value through profit or loss

2023 2022
uso usD

MNet change in unrealised gain/ {loss) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 18,895,429 (19,576,253)
Realised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (4,668,121) (6,853,742)

The above relates to fair value gain on deals classified under financial assets through profit or loss, Refer to
MNote 18.11.

10. OTHER INCOME

2023 2022

uso ush

Rebats incoma* 19,392 -
Other income** 320,195 S, 648
339,587 564,648

*Hebate income relates to Class B3 participating shares. Class B3 is Euro based, it inherits the same
characteristics that are embedded for Class B1 and B2 and thus the return should be consistent. The Fund
applies a rebate income [ rebate expense to mitigate the currency fluctuation,

**Other income includes USD 296,165 (2022: USD 563,415) which relates to royalty and dividend income
from the borrowers as per the relevant agreement,
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11. INTEREST EXPENSE

2023 2022

usoD uso

Loan counterparty 1 1,723,334 4,293,801
Loan counterparty 2 4,973,501 4,305,381
Loan counterparty 5 2,997,780 -
Other interest expense® 1,612,280 1,745,364

11,306,895 10,344,546

*Other interest expenses relate to the other co-funders to the Fund under the limit of USD 800,000 (2022:
USD 700,000) as describad in note 8 (loans payable).

**During the year 2023, interest expense amounting to USD Nil (2022: USD Nil} was written off as part of
agreed settlement amount due to the co-funder,

12, OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2023 2022

uso ust

Professional and legal fees 1,302,949 856,879
Adminkstration fees*® 169,438 220,640
Insurance feag™** 133,160 145,811
Audit fees 157,125 144,560
Other operating expenses 110,207 97,749
Documentation fees 16,721 197,450
Rebate expenses** - 65,721
Bank charges 46,399 43,562
Directors’ fees 25,000 26,354
Commission expense - 23,071
Pricing agent fees 22,920 22,920
Custodian fees 5402 6,167
FATCA and CRS fees 2,500 7,300

1,991,821 1,958,184
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12. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
* Vistra Afternative Investments (Mauntius) Limited — Admimistrator

The Fund has appointed Vistra Altermnative Investments (Mauritius) Limited as the “Administrator” on 15th
March 2023, The Administrator is entitled to receive a minimum administration fee amounting to USD 15,000
per annum for the Fund. Administration fees is payable monthly in arrears as per the Administration
agreement,

Total administration fees for the year amounted to USD 169,438 (2022: USD 220,640), with USD 12,047
(2022: USD 16,599) in outstanding accrued fees due to the Mew Administrator at the end of the year.

** Class B3 is Eura based, it inherits the same characteristics that are embedded for Class Bl and B2 and
thus the return should be consistent. The Fund applies a rebate income [/ rebate expense to mitigate the
currency fluctuation.

*** Insurance fees cover professional indemnity, directors and officer’s liability, crime, and USA/Canada
claims.

13. TAXATION

Under current Cayman Islands Laws, the Fund is not required to pay any taxes in the Cayman Islands on
gither income or capital gains. Accordingly, no tax provision or liability has been recorded in the accompanying
financial statements. The Fund may incur withholding tax imposed by certain countries on investment income.,
The Fund did not incur any withholding tax in 2023 and 2022,

14. REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

The authorised share capital of the Company is USD 20,000,100 divided into 100 non-Participating voting
Management Shares of no-par value and 20,000,000 Redeemable Farticipating non=voting Shares of no-par
value. One Management Share of the Company has been issued to the Investments Manager for a total
contribution of USD 1.

The Fund is represented by the redeemable shares issued. These shares are issued as class Bl, B2, B3 and
B4 shares, all of them carrying equal rights,
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14. REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES {CONTINUED)
Subscription of Redeemalle Participaling shares

The Redeemable Participating Shares will be available for subscription on the first Business Day of each
manth at the Subscription Price. The Subscription Price will be the MNet Asset Value per Participating Share
for the relevant Class as at the close of business on the Valuation Day.

The minimum initial subscription for Class E1 Redeemable Participating Shares is USD 100,000, USD 25,000
far Class B2 Redeemable Participating Shares; ELR 25,000 for Class B3 Redeemable Participating Shares and
USD 100,000 for Class B4 Redeemable Participating Shares, provided that such minimum initial subscription
may be waived in the discretion of the Directors, provided further that any Investor's investment across all
the Segregated Portfolios of the Company is not less than USD 100,000 (or its equivalent in Eura).

The minimum additional subscriptions for Class Bl Redeemable Participating Shares are USD 20,000,
USD25,000 for Class B2 Redeemable Participating Shares; EUR 25,000 for Class B3 Redeemnable Participating
Shares and USD 10,000 for Class B4 Redeemable Participating Shares.

The directors of the Fund suspended the subscription of shares in the Fund as from 30 March 2020.
Redemption of Redeemable Participating shares

The B1, B2 and B4 Participating Shares are redeemable on the last day of each calendar quarter provided a
duly completed notice of redemption is received by the Administrator no less than three months prior to such
day. The redemption proceeds of the B1, B2 and B4 Redeemable Participating Shares will be paid within 30
calendar days of the end of the relevant Redemption Day.

The B3 Participating Shares are redeemable bi-annually on the last Valuation Day in December and the last
Valuation Day in June provided a duly completed notice of redemption is recenved by the Administrator no
less than six months prior to such day. The redemption proceeds of the B3 Participating Shares will be paid
within 30 calendar days of the end of the relevant Redemption Day.

There i no lock-in period on the Class B1, B3 or the Class B4 Participating Shares. The Class B2 Participating
Shares may not be redeemed prior to the third anniversary of the subscription for such Farticipating Shares
(the "Lock-In Period") except with the prior written consent of the Directors,

The redemption price for each Participating Share in the Fund is equal to the Net Asset Value per Farticipating
Share of each Class on the Redemption Day. The Met Asset Value per Participating Share of each Class is
determined as of the closa of business an each Valuation Day in accordance with the provisions set out in
the Private Offering Memorandum.

Valuation day is defined as the last valuation day in each calendar guarter or such other as may be determined
by the Directors.,

The Fund strives to invest the subscription received on the issue of redeemable shares in investments that
meet the Fund's investment objectives while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meeat shareholder redemptions.
The Fund does not have any externally imposed capital requirements. The Fund with the approval of the
Board can extend the suspension of subscription and redemption in accordance with the terms of the private
offering memarandum to allow the Fund the time needed to liquidate its investment portfolio to service
redemption reguests,
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14. REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES (CONTINUED)
Redemption of Redeemalie Participating shares (continued)

The Directors may compulsorily redeem all the Participating Shares held by a Shareholder. Participating
Shares will be compulsorily redeemed at the Redemption Price prevailing on the Redemption Day next
following the issuance of a notice of compulsory redemption to the relevant Sharehalder(s).

Redemption during for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2023 were as follows:

2023 2022

uso uso

Opening balance 18,210,098 6,898,986
Shares redeemed during the year 131,000,000 92,000,000

Fayment on redeemable participating shares redeemed (141,456,308) (80,0688 858)

Closing balance 7,753,790 18,210,098

- -

As part of the exit strategy of the Fund, a compulsory redemption amounting to USD 131,000,000 was paid to
all shareholders in proportion to their shareholding as of 31 December 2022, 31 March 2023 and 30 June 2023.
Out of the USD 131,000,000, USD 7,753,790 was still payable as at 31 December 2023,

The below table outlines the share activity of the Fund for the year ended 31 December:

Opening Closing

number of number of

redeemable Redeemable Redeemable Shares redesmable

2023 shares Shares Issued Redeemed shares

Class B1 2,035,323 - (472,134) 1,563,189

Class B2 461,761 - (107,115) 354,646

Class B3 8,301 - (1,926) 6,375

Class B4 24,746,392 - (5,740,395) 19,005,997

27,251,777 - (6,321,570) 20,930,207

2022

Class B1 2,315,677 - (280,354) 2,035,323
Class B2 525,365 - (63,604) 461,761
Class B3 9,444 - (1,143) 8,301
Class B4 28,155,094 - (3,408,702) 24,746,392
31,005,580 (3,753,803) 27,251,777
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14. REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES (CONTINUED)

The below table outlines the share activity of the Fund for the year ended 31 December:
MNet asset value per share

Par value 2023 2022
uso usp Uso
Class Bl 100 204.14 243,59
Class B2 100 75.00 89.60
Class B3 100 75.87 87.80
Class B4 1 0.6097 0.7346
15. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2023 2022
usD ust
Net decrease in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares
from operations (67,247,525) (78,869,798)
Increase in expected credit losses 150,585,345 121,148,509
Unrealised gain/loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (18,895,429) 19,576,253
Realised fair value loss on financials asset at fair
value through profit or loss 4,668,121 6,863,742
Interest expense 11,306,895 10,344,546
Interest income (89,933,812) (91,917 ,632)
Profit margin (2,160,597) (2,076,629)

[11_.6.?1,002] {1.4,931,009]
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16. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The identification of reportable segments is determined based on a consideration of services, geographical
areas, economic and regulatory environment, The business is widely distributed with no reliance on any
major customers. The business sells a single product that enables clients to conduct operations, which can
be in the form of repurchase financing agreements or structured working capital loan agreements or
borrowing base structured facilities, bridge finance which could be both short term and long term, Underiying
securties can be in the form of commodities, fixed assets, and share pledges. Management assesses
information relating to the performance of this single segment on multiple levels and from multiple
perspectives. Whilst data analysis facilitates the detailed evaluations of any aspect of the business, all
elements are regarded as interconnected, and no part of the business can be truly regarded as separable
from the rest. Collateral assessment for 3 repo agreement or structured working capital loan are conducted
at a holistic level of the business. Accordingly, any perspective or level of the business reported on is regarded
as having met the aggregation criteria regarding products and services, type or class of customers,
distribution methad and common regulatory environment. Over and above the interest charged, a facility fee
is often being charged to the client as well to boost return to the Fund and this forms part an integral part
of the effective interest rate.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are related if one party has the ability to controf the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial or operational decisions, One Management Share has been issued by the
Company to the Alteia Holding Trust for a total contribution of USD 1.

a) Barak Fund Management Limited - Investment Manager
i.  Management fees

The Fund has an Investment Management Agreement with Barak Fund Management Limited (the
"Investment Manager”). Pursuant to this agreement the Investment Manager is entitled to receive a
management fee of 2% (except for Class B4 2%) per annum of the net asset value of the Segregated
Portfolio payable monthly in arrears.

The total management fees for the year amounted to USD 10,024,767 (2022: USD 13,537,473), with USD
829,543 (2022: USD 967,230) in outstanding accrued fees due to the Investment Manager at the end of
the year.

ii. Performance fees

The perfarmance fes is calculated and accrued in respect of each 1-year period (the “calculation year")
ending March, June, September, and Decamber. For each calculation, the performance fee is equal to 20%
of the amount by which net asset value reflects a rate of return that exceeds the hurdle rate equal to LIBOR
and a High-Water Mark. The hurdle rate is the net asset value at the time of issue of that unit or, if issued
in a previous cakculation year, the high-water mark brought forward, increased by the three-month UK LIBOR
rate. The performance fee in respect of each calculation year is calculated by reference to the net asset value
before deduction of any accrued performance fee.

Total performance fees for the year amounted to USD NIL (2022: USD Nil) with USD NIL (2022 USD Nil)
in outstanding accrued fees due to the Investment Manager at the end of the year. Performance fees has
not been adjusted further to after year-end adjustments made to the financials. The Fund has received a
legal opinion whereby it states that there is no provision in the POM of the Fund that would afford the
Company the right to claw back fees that have already been paid to the Investment Manager.
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NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(CONTINUED)
17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
a) Barak Fund Management Limited - Investment Manager (continued)

iii.  Shares subscribed by Investment Manager

2023 Number of
Shareholding shares

Class Bl shares issued to BFML 1% 12,406

2022

Class Bl shares issued to BFML 1% 16,153

Amount
uso

2,532,566

3,934,709

iv. Rebate income receivable from the Investment Manager/ (Rebate expenses payable to the

Investment Manager)

2022
uso

25,519

2023

uso

Rebate income from Class B3 Redeemable Participating shares 19,392

Rebate expenses from Class B4 Redeemable Participating shares -
v.  Amount receivable from the Investment Manager

2023

uso

Opening balance 25,519

Additions 433,758

Repayment (193,744)

Closing balance 265,533

The above represents movement in expenses paid on behalf of the Fund and rebate payable/receivable. The

amount payable to the Investment Manager was repaid in full post year end.
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(B} Common direcbors and shareholders to the Investment Manager and the loan counterparty
31 Decamber 2023
Gross financial asset ot fair value through profit or lods, net of co-funder portion
Financlal asset Financial asset Financial asset
Counterparty A Counterparty B Counterparty C Total
usD uso usoD UsD
Cpening balance on 1 lsnuary 2023 50,315,863 17,905,138 - FR.I20,991
Financial assets repakd (5,299,173} - - (5,299,173}
Finangial dmsets originated - - 1 1
Fair valuse gain on financial assets at fair vaise
thrcaugh prodit o kss 1L, 100,006 = 3,122,072 14,323,078
Financial assets trandfered to Barak Strschuned
Trade Finsnce Segregated Portfolio 1,751,468 - - 1,751,468
Recehable GB3.213 - - GEY 213
Closing balance 31 Decermber 2023 67552377 17,905,128 3,121,073 BB.6T9.578
EEEEEEEN EEEEass Zz===== EEEEEED
* Findncial afget counterparties A, B and C are cligsified a5 financal aset at fair value through profit or ks
**Financial assets at Tar walue through profi of loss countemarty C oomprise of a loan restructuning, wheee ane of the
bormowers hat assigned shares amounting 1o LISD 3,222,073 to Barak STF Trust through which the beneficiary & the
Coenpany.
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)
17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(i) Commaon directors and shareholder to the Investment Manager smd the ban cownterparty [continued)
31 Decesmber 2022
Gross financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, net of co-funder porticn
Finarcial asce Financial asoe

Countarparty A Coimterparty B Tatal

usp uso D

Cpening balance on 1 Jamuary 2022 90,025,813 19,008,162 109033975

Financial asets repaid [24,404,322) {1,103,034) (25,507 356)

Financial assets originated 11,405,215 - 11,405 235
Fair valye bots on financal assets at far value

thncugh profit or koss {17,700, 863) - (17, 710,563)

Ciosing balance 31 Decernber 20232 59,315,863 17,905,128 77,020,991

—————————————— (Tt E )

* Financiad roset courdenpanties A and B are ciassified as finandial asset at fair vatoe through profit or koss.,
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2023 2022
usop usp

(¢} Loan cofunded between Segregated Portiolio
Loan receivable from Barak Shanta Segregated Portfolio 2,708,215 2,256,919

These are deals that have been co-financed by the Fund in Barak Shanta Searegated Partfolio. The risks and
returns are effectively mirrored proportionately back to the Fund as part of the participation agreesment. A
participating certificate is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered where all commercial and
legal terms are agreed. The deals co- financed were at an interest rate of 13.75% and profit share. There was
no repayment was received by the Fund post year end (2022: USD 1,341,533).

2023 2022
uso usp

Loan receivable from Barak Mikopo Segregated Portfolio 25,850,990 22,210,381

These are deals that have been co-financed by the Fund in Barak Mikopo Segregated Portfolio. The risks and
returns are effectively mirrored proportionately back to the Fund as part of the participation agresment. A
participating certificate is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered where all commercial and
legal terms are agreed. The deals co- financed were at an interest rate of 10.5% plus SOFR overnight. There
was no repayment received by the Fund post year end.

2023 2022
uso uso
Loan payable to Barak Shariah Trade Finance Fund Segregated
Portfolio 3,273,199 2,748,150

These are deals that have been co-financed by Barak Shariah Trade Finance Fund Segregated Portfalio in the
Fund. The risks and returns are effectively mirrored proportionately back to the Fund as part of the
participation agreement. A participating certificate is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered
where all commercial and legal terms are agreed. The deals co- financed were at a profit share of 12% and
35% on total profit share when the commodities are sold. The loan was fully repaid by the Fund post year end
(2022: USD 1,829,381).
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Loan co-funded between Segregated Portfolio (continued)

2023 2022
UsD usD
Loan payable to Barak Mikopo Segregated Portfolio - 2,958,992

These are deals that have been co-financed by Barak Mikopo Segregated Portfolio in the Fund. The risks and
returns are effectively mirrored proportionately back to the Fund as part of the participation agreement. A
participating certificate is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered where all commercial and legal
terms are agreed. The deals co- financed were at an interest rate of 12.7% plus 3 months LIBOR. The amount
due by the Fund was fully repaid post year end.

(d) Net assets attributable to EM High Yield Fund SP ("EMH")

The net assets attributable to EMH as at 31 December is as follows:

Class B1 Class B4 Class B1 Class B4
2023 2023 2022 2022
usD usD uUsD usb
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
preference shares 15,536,585 5,411,565 22,435,093 8,490,368

As at 31 December 2023, EMH held 76,106 (2022: 92,103) shares in class Bl and 8,876,503 (2022: USD
9,098,294) shares in class B4.

(e) Key management personnel - Directors’ fee

2023 2022

usD usD

Annual directors’ fees for the year 25,000 26,354
Professional fees paid during the year 149,700 259,358
174,700 285,712
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund’s activities may expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (specifically fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The Fund’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the evaluation of credit risk and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Fund's financial performance. The Fund has investment guidelines that set out its overall
business strateqies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk management philosophy and has established
processes bo monitor and control such risks,

18.1 Market risk

The Fund's financial instruments include:
- Loans receivable,
- Fimancial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Cash and cash equivalents; and
= Other receivables excluding prepayments

The Fund’s exposure to market risk are as follows:
18.2 Price risk

Price risk arises from investments for which market prices in the future are uncertain, The Fund is not exposed
to price risk as of 31 December 2023 and 2022, as it did not hold any market exposed instruments.

18.3 Interest rate risk
Exposure to interest rate risk

The Fund's interest-bearing financial assets expose it to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates. The majority of the Fund's loans receivable are issued at fixed
interest rates and are measured at amortised cost. The variable interest rate loans are exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk.

The table below summarises the Fund's exposure to interest rate as well as maturity risks. It includes the
Fund's assets at amortised cost, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, and
from inception of the contracts. It also shows the Fund's split between fixed and variable interest rate
securities, as well as non-interest-bearing securities. The loans receivable is shown net of provision for
expected credit losses.

Fage &4
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF DARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
WOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)
18, FINANCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
LEY Imbenest rate rick [contirued )
Expointe fo oberest rate ik feoatiaved)
31 Deeenbar 2023
3 Moniths or Itol Bio 12 1 fo 4 years Unadaited Tt Porthon of Portion of Posrithon of total
Lty manthe enoeths total which i todal which which is non =
fived ks vartabk 4 besring
Assads uso uso usD uso uso ushD usD uso uso
lLoang: recenv bie 5908972 16354943 30432087 IIRSFO.FET 65907.04  JA91EITI 284508006 64,185,007 -
= Amortised
-]
Firdncial asiety
= FVTPL - - 3222074 10,752,081 88 165720 102,140,775 - . 102,140,775
reoenvalbies® 265,533 - - . 83,722 320,255 . . 329,355
Cash and cash
equbalents 11,031,463 - - . - 11,081,463 . G638,356 11,355,107

Total assets: 17005968 18358043  IR654161 23033L748 154136845 471084666 284998076 2 71A21453 113,865,137
EEEEENEN SESENEN SEESSEES SEEEEEEN SEEEEEEE 2 SESEEEEN SEEEEEEE SESSESES ELETT LT
Thaet maturity buciosts of the finsncisl ssosts and Rahillties retates 1o Rapuidity.
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156/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

Page 55
BARAE STRUCTURED TRADE FINARCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
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18, FIMANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (COMTINUED)
183 Interest rate risk [ continued)
Exposurd o ltévast ride rivk feonlinued)
31 December 2023 {contineed §
3 Months or Jtod Gtell  1tedyeans Undated Total Portion of Portion of  Portion of total
less months months ‘botall which total which which is non -
I fixed isvariable  interest Bearing
uso use use uso s [[1] usp uso s
Liabilities
gt
ESpRnEE (1,023,370} . . . - (1,023,370) - . [1,023,370)
paryabhes (172,847}  (172,847) (2872,596) (44,609.294) (54,790,667) (102,618,251) (66,256,062) (25389,550) (10,702,639}
Cither parpibies {15,314} = = = (3471,622) (3,486,036) = - {3,486,936)
Refemption
panyabie = = (WIS T0) (7,753,700} - = (7,753,700}
Tatal

liahtiies (L,21L531)  (172,847) (28T2596) (44,600,294] (66,016079) (114,882.347) (66,256,062) (I5389,550) (22,966,735

Intenest rata
rish
exposune 25994437 18182096 30781565 194713454  BRAIOFEF  ISTEBOLILD  IAATIOI4  48.431,903 90,898 402

EEEEEEEE SEEEEEE SEENEEN SEEEEEEE SEEEEEES 2 CEEEEEES CENEENEE SEEEEEEE EEEEEEEE

Tt raphoriy Esacioets of the financial decels and labStkes relpes 1o sdey.
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HOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)
18. FINANCLAL AISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
LD Imberest rabe rick {continued)
Exposure (o lotevest rade rsk (contioved)

21 Dovemiber 20227
Portion of total Postion of total
3 Months of Ik 6o 12 14 Prartion of botal which i witich i non =
(= months Fontis PRI Undates Total  which b fioed varable interest bearng
Rasets ush LisD sD 50 [fos) sD B0 usD ush
Lo peceivable
= Ao
-] M0 A 4T133,5M X EMG2s 1M1, 162588 232,230,112 Eh0.250. 260 189,055,401 B 524,844 TE I
Finantial assets
=F¥TPL L1BO0, 492 5,805,609 TELG.B35 = 63,929,805 04,044, 763 = = 94,144,753
Cither
PEOEALES® 20519 & - x 148 115,667 = - 115,657
Aenount due
From broker 55,902 B AH,00 - . " A " 2392952
Cash and cash
equialents I8 - . - . 404,238 . 17,618,162 22,008,078
Total resets THAESA19 62,263,069 BO4TT5 131, 162.586 B0k, 244,086 A1 15995421 115905958 187,711,500

The: matueity buciets of the Trancial sesets and Eabeices relates (o Bgudty,
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18, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGESENT {COMTINUED)
18.3 Interest rate risk {continued)
Exposure to lrtevest cbe risk (contimued)
31 Dozmber 2002 (oortened)
3 Marnihs or ELLT Gl 1iod s Undabed Total  Portion of total Fortion of total Portion of total
e maekhs manths which is foosd  which bs variabie wahich i nan -
st bearing
uso usD wsh =D =D ush ush uso .25
(1238 5249y - - ' . {1.138,524) - - {1,138,525)
(1,065 442) (1383) (3L956.315) (45.213.852) {B217,990)  (BATTLAMY  ([50.529.848) (26,219,574) {7,621, 608)
{73,558) (75.400) ; . 13,298,406} (3447 364) & - (3,947, 364)
(15402.971) (367.054) T = {2430,063)  (18.280.008) {18, 210,098)

(17 554,500) (756,395) (3956015} (5213852  (5S63S) (10T957A21)  (90.529.848) [26,215,574) {30,417,555)

i %gg%ﬁsz E

0804919  B1L5085M4  SHAG1 A4 B5HETHM 20T T SSA0I94RE 209.089,57Y 3,716,004 157,295 501

The ity buchets of the financal msets and Rabillies relates 10 bguidity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.3 Interest rate risk {continued)
MNon-interest-bearing loans consist of deals on which transaction fees are charged in lieu of interest,

Fair value interest rate risk- fair value movement relating to fixed interest rate and non-
interest-bearing loans receivable:

The loans receivable that are issued at fixed interest rates are measured at amortised cost. A 0.25% up or
down movement in interest rates, with all other variables remaining constant, would not have a material
effect on the fair value.

Cash flow interest rate risk- cash flow movement relating to variable interest rate loans
receivable:

At 31 December 2023, should market interest rates have risen by 1% (2022:1%) with all other variables
remaining constant, the increase in net interest received for the year would amount to approximately USD
484,319 (2022: USD 897,160). If market interest rates had lowered by 1% (2022 1%), the decrease in
net interest received for the year would amount to approximately USD 484,319 (2022: USD 897,160),

Policies and procedures for managing the risk

The Fund does not make use of any derivative instruments to manage interest rate risk. The Fund analyses
the current interest rate scenaric and utilising forecasts based on macroeconomic data, uses this
information to price new loans.

18.4 Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss, should any of the Fund's borrowers and counterparties fail to fulfil
their contractual cbligations to the Fund. Credit risk arises mainly from structured loans and advances, and
loan commitments arising fram such lending activities,

Credit risk is one of the largest risks for the Fund and management therefore carefully manages its exposure
to credit risk, The maximum credit risk per class of financial instrument is as follows:

2023 2022

usD usD
Loans receivable — Amartised cost 349,183,173 520,259,260
Financial assets — fair value through profit or loss 102,140,775 94,144,762
Other receivables excluding prepayments 329,255 115,667
Amount due from broker - 9,302,992
Cash and cash equivalents 21,031,463 39,694,238

472,684,666 663,606,919
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.4 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement
Loans and advances

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of a
model, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of
time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood
of defaults cccurring and of the associated loss ratios. The Fund measures credit risk using Probability of
Default (FD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD), This is similar to the approach used
for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECL) under IFRS 9.

Credit risk grading

The Fund uses an external credit risk model purchased from Standard & Poor’s (S&F) that reflect its
assessment of the PD of individual counterparties. The S&F Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) rating
tool uses the S&P ratings methodology to rate a company by producing a pergentage PD and LGD.

Refer to note 5 for more detail on credit risk mitigations relating to the co funding agreements.

For PD purposes, the tool incorporates quantitative and qualitative aspects. The quantitative aspect requires
input of the borrower's financial statements (income statement and balance sheet) as well as the country
of risk, which s considered by the tool in the rating but not capped at the country rating. The qualitative
aspect entails answering questions on the management, access to liquidity etc.,, which may improve or
worsen the quantitative rating. The Credit Officer also has the option of answering all these questions with
"not applicable or M/A” such that the rating from the system is just a quantitative rating (i.e., just based
on the financial statements that are input).

For LGD purposes, the tool requires lpan specific information to be input. This incorporates the seniority or
ranking of the facility, whether it is secured or unsecured and what it is secured by. The collateral amount
for the facility is also included here. The tool uses this information, together with the balance sheet
information input for the PD above, to determine an LGD. The Credit Risk Reviewer has the ability to
override either one or both PD and LGD and must provide a reason for doing this.

The S&P SME rating tool has been specifically calibrated for SMEs in Africa and sometimes may not provide
the correct rating if the underlying transaction does not fit a typical SME or balance sheet lending profile.
For example, the tool requires financial information. Therefore, if a new business in a special purpose
vehicle that has no financial history is being financed, the tool cannot effectively rate such a deal. This
wolld apply to cash Now-based lending structures or project finance type lending, where the repayment
doas not rely on the balance sheet of the company but on the cash flows from the assat being financad,
Hence, there are a few deals which cannot be rated through this tool.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

18, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.4 Credit risk (continued)
Creglt risk grading (continued)

A deal can also be rated based on the creditworthiness of a guarantor, off taker or insurance provider. In
a cash flow-based lending structure for example, one can use the rating of the off taker for the facility/
client since the ability of the borrower to repay the debt largely depends on the ability of the off taker to
pay for the goods or services being supplied by the borrower.

The credit grades are calibrated such that the risk of default increases exponentially at each higher risk
grade, For example, this means that the difference in the PD betwean an A and A- rating grade is lower
than the difference in the PD between a B and B- rating grade. These published grades are continucusly
monitored and updated by S&P. The PDs associated with each grade are determined based on realised
default rates over the prior 12 months, as published by the rating agency.

The S&P/ Fund's rating method comprises of 19 rating bevels from AAM to CCC-, The master scale assigns
each rating category a specified range of probabilities of default, which is stable over time. The rating
methods are subject to a regular validation and recalibration by S&F so that they reflect the [atest
projections in the light of all cbserved defaults.

The Fund's rating scale is set out below:

Rating Associated Year 1 PD Percentage

2023 2022
ARA 0.0040% 0.0090%,
Al 0.0065% 0.0065%
Al 0.0120% 0.0123%
Al 0.0255% 0.0255%
A 0.0401% 0.0402%
A 0.0576% 0.0577%
A= 0.0790% 0.0795%
BEE+ 0.1146% 0.1188%
BEB 0.1556% 0.1605%
BEB- 0.2462% 0.2562%
BE+ 0.3467% 0.3513%
BB 0.5814% 0.5965%
B8B- 1.0975% 1.1151%
B+ 2.1962% 2.2149%
B 3.3836% 3.5600%
B- 6.7629% 7.1965%
CCC+ 13.2538% 13.8888%
CCC 25.9849% 26.8117%
coc- 50.9655% 51.7731%

(¥ 100% 100%%
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(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
1B.4 Credit risk (continued)
Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Fund employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most comman of these is
taking collateral or security for loans advanced. The Fund has internal policies on the valuation of specific
classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation but will generally take all collateral possible, whether capable
of independent valuation or not, to ensure that the borrower has much to lose by defaulting on the loan
and to incentivise the borrower to repay the loan or develop a strategy to repay the loan even in difficult
circumstances,

The Fund prepares a valuation of the collateral obtained as part of the loan origination process, This
assessment i monitored and reviewed periodically. The principal collateral types for loans and advances
are:

. Mortgages over properties;

. Charges owver business assets such as property, plant, equipment and mining rights, inventory,
bank accounts and accounts receivable;

. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities; and

. Personal and/ or corporate guarantees,

The Fund’s policies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period
and there has been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral held by the Fund since the
prior period.

The Fund closaly monitors collateral held for assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more
likely that the Fund will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTIMUED)
18, FINAMCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.4 Credit risk {continued)
Financial assets that are credit-impaired (slage 3) and relsted colateral held to mitigate potental ietes are shown below:
31 December 2023
Credit risk Maximum
expasune fully expogune for
mitigated which a credit
through co= loss can ba
Gross loans funding  incurred for the Carnying Present value of
reCkivable Breerments Fund Expected credit Armsount Collateral taken
losses
uso uso uso uso uso uso
Criagat-impained
Asgets - Arorticed oot BEGA07,248  (91,915,614) TT4A91,634 (517,224,075} 257,267,559 524,348,489
Credit-impained
Firancial asselts = fair value
through profit or ko 102,140,775  (10,702,638) 91,438,137 - 91,438,137 91,438,137
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
184 Credit risk {continued)
1 Decernber 2022
Credit risk  Hasdmum exposure
exposure fully for which & Credit
mitigated loss can be
through co- incumred for the
Gross loans Tanding Furxd Carmyrg Present value of
riscesvable SreaEnlc Expsctid credi Arrsnk Collateral taken
oeses
WsD uso ush uso =D st
Credit-impained
Asnots = Amortsed oost 915,996,440 (169,655, 558) E50, 250,912 (490,003.816) 355,227 006 39,123,597
Credit-impained
Finarecial assets - fair value
throgugh profit o loss TRATTH08 . 9477208 . TaATT TRATTS08
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.4 Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets are assessed based on their credit ratings as published by Moody's or by an equivalent
public rating agency. P-1 is the highest passible short-term rating.

Financial assets are classified within the range of P-1 to P-3. Financial assets which fall outside this range
are classified as not rated. The Fund's cash and cash equivalents are classified between P-1 and P-3, while
its loans receivable, other receivables, loan receivable from related party and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are classified as not rated in 2023 and 2022.

Each counterparty and facility must be approved by the Fund's Realisation Committee before a debt security
is issued. Each debt security has collateral written into the contract, collateral baing commaodities, minerals,
fixed asset, guarantees and share pledges. On default of the debt securities, the fair value of the collateral
is transferred to the Segregated Portfolic where it is more efficient and cost effective while for some other
facilities which have defaulted, work around solution is favored as opposed to Investment Manager taking
over the collateral.

The commodity financed by the Fund will serve as collateral for the loan for the duration of the loan
contract. If, at any time during the loan contract, the aggregate value of the collateral falls below an
average of 105% of the aggregate value of the loan, the Fund will be entitled to call upon the counterparty
to provide further security for such shortfall, provided that the shortfall is more than USD 10,000, No calls
were made in the current year or prior year.

163/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

Page 65

BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
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(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.4 Credit risk (continued)

Recoverability assessment for stage 3 loans

Refer to note 5 for explanation on assessment of recoverability for stage 3 loans.

The following table provides information regarding the aggregated credit risk exposure for financial assets
with external credit ratings as of 31 December 2023 and 2022;

2023 2022
usp usD

Cash and Cash equivalents
P-1 - 77,712
F-3 20,462,542 38,818,388
Unrated* 568,921 798,138
21,031,463 39,694,238

All cash and cash equivalents are neither past due nor impaired and have a maturity of less than 2 months.
Other receivables

2023 2022
uso Uso
Mon-rated 329,255 115,667

All other receivables are neither past due nor impaired and have a maturity of less than 6-12 months.

Amount due from broker

2023 2022
usoD UsD
Non-rated - 9,392, 992

Amount due from broker is neither past due nor impaired and have a maturity of less than 6-12 months.
The amount was received during the year,

164/216



BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.4 Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of credit risk

31 December 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
uso usp usp uso
Low Risk - - - -
Medium Risk - - 115,539,542 115,539,542
High Risk - 77,883,770 581,068,322 658,095,092
- 77,883,770 696,607,864 774,491,634
31 December 2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
usD Ush Usp ush
Low Risk 55,755 5 - 55,759
Medium Risk 17,169,517 - 117 488,496 134,658,013
High Risk 2,041,875 66,944,959 732,762 416 801,749,250
19,267,151 66,544,959 850,250,912 936,463,022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.4 Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of credit risk {continued)

Policies and procedures for managing the risk

The counterparties to the Fund's investment in cash are well known and reputable and do not expose the
Fund to significant credit risk, even if AfrAsia Bank Ltd is an unrated custodian amounting to USD 798,138
(2022: USD 798,138).

It is the Company's policy to diversify its investment portfolio of each Segregated Portfolio by investing in
various classes of investments with various strategies to limit the volatility and risk if one sector, market or
company could suffer a major downfall which could significantly and adwversely affect the owverall
performance of the Fund. There are internal limits set up in terms of country exposure risk, commodity
limit and seckor limit. As part of the exit strategy of the Fund and compulsory redemption, the Investment
Manager notifies the Company that the investment objective of the Fund is no longer reasonably achievable
in accordance with the investment policies and restrictions for the year 2023 and 2022. Refer to Mote 18.9
for investrment restriction breach.

The table below sets out the credit risk exposure as a percentage of net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable preference shares to counterparties of financial assets as of 31 December:

Counterparty exposure 2023 2022

% %
Loan counterparty 1 19% 11%
Loan counterparty 2 14% 9%k
Loan counterparty 3 7% 6%
Loan counterparty 4 7% %
Loan counterparty 5 7% 5%
Loan counterparty & 6% 5%
Other counterparties 40% 59%

Other counterparties consisting of 40% (2022: 59%) of credit risk are made up of amounts due from 76
(2022: 75) entities. Mone of the other counterparties individually contribute more than 4% (2022:4%) to
the 40% (2022; 59%) total.
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.5 Capital risk

The Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares. The
amount of net asset attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares can change significantly
monthly, as the Fund is subject to monthly subscriptions and quarterly redemptions, as well as changes
resulting from the Fund's performance. The Fund issues four classes of redeemable shares (B1, B2, B3 and
B4), which are redeemable at the holder's option and have identical rights but different terms.

B1 share class was listed on the Irish Stock Exchange until 13 September 2022, Further to the exit strategy,
the Company was delisted on 13 September 2022, While B2 share class contains a lockup period where
the shares may not be redeemed prior to the third anniversary of the subscription, B1, B3 and B4 shares
may be redeemed at the option of the holder on each redemption day. The Fund's objective when managing
capital is to safequard the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern to provide returns for investors,
provide benefits for other stakeholders and maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
the investment activities of the Fund. To maintain the capital structure, the Fund's policy is to perform the
following:

= Monitor the level of monthly subscriptions and quarterty/bi-annually redemptions relative to the assets it
expects to be able to liquidate within a calendar quarter.

- Redeem and issue new shares in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Fund, which include
the ability to restrict redemptions.

- The Board of Directors and Investment Manager monitor capital based on the value of net assets
attributable to redeemable participating shareholders.

- Suspension of redemptions and subscriptions of the Fund effective 31 March 2022. The suspension will
end on the date on which the Board declares an end to the Suspension. This is in accordance with the
terms of the private offering memorandum,

18.6 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
lizbilities.

The main liquidity risk to the Fund arises from the redemption requests of investors and repayment on
loans to provide liquidity, The holders of redeeamable participating shares are entitled to redeem part or all
their capital which exposes the Fund to the liquidity risk of not meeting this obligation.

The liquidity is limited to the receipt of a 90-day withdrawal notice from investors (except for class B2) and
is dealt with by managing the duration of the loan book. The nat assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares are payable every calendar quarter. B2 share class contains a lockup period
which is 3 years. Most of the operating expenses are dealt within management fees and are paid to the
Investment Manager and hence is not considered to be risky. Operating expenses are paid out of interest
income received from the loan counterparties. Co funding is not considered risky as repayment is made to
the co-funder only when the underlying counterparty has repaid back to the Fund.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.6 Liguidity risk (continued)

If redemption requests on any redemption day equal or exceed 30% of the outstanding aggregate
redeemable participating shares in issue on that redemption day, the directors may alect to restrict the
total number of redeemable participating shares to be redeemed to 30° of the cutstanding agaregate
redeemable participating shares in issue on that redemption date, in which case all redemption requests
will be scaled down pro rata to the size of that request. The balance will be redeemed at the discretion of
the directors on the next succeeding redemption day or any redemption day thereafter when the directors
deem that the fund has sufficient liquidity to pay those redemptions provided that the redemptions will be
processed in priorty to any requests received thereafter. This is currently being mitigated by suspension
on redemption.

The Fund is also exposed to the risk of not meeting its obligations to co-funders. This is however a minor
risk, as co-funders are repaid whan the Fund receives repayments from its clients.

The table balow summarises the Fund’s exposure to liquidity risks at undiscounted figures. It includes the
Fund's assets at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, categorised by the
earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, and from statement of financial position date. The
unlisted debt securities are shown net of provision for expected credit losses. Refer to note 5 (loans
receivable) for the net values,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINAMCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINARCLAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 3023 (CONTINUED)
18, FINAMCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
18.6 Liquidity risk (continued)
31 December 2023
3 Months oF ELET Giell  1todyasr Umilatad Tolal
i mnnkhs months
Assets uso uso uso uso uso usn
Lpans recehvable — Amortised cost 59084972 18354943 30,432,087 2H570,767 65907404 349,183,173
Financial assets ot tair value through prolfit o ioss - - 3212074 10,752,981 B8 165,720 102,140,775
Cher necehabies excluding prepayments 265,533 = - - 63,722 329,255
Cash and cash eguivalents 21,031,463 - - 21,031,453

Total assets 27,205,968 18,354,943 33,654,161 239,332,748 154,136,846 471,684,606
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTROLIO
(& SEGREGATED PORTFOLID OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)
18, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18,6 Liquidity risk (continued)
3 Months or LT 6012  1tod years Undated Total
less mignths months
usD usoD uso [F1.4: ] {11 ] [11=x]
Liabilities
Actrued expenses (1,023,370) - i - * {1,023.370)
Loafrs paryalies {172,847) {172,847y (2,871506) (44,600.294) (54,790,667) (102,618.251)
Orher aiyabies (15,314} - - - [3.471,622) (3 486.936)
Redemption payable® = - = - (7,753,180} (7,753,790}
Mt assets alinbatabie to holders of redeemable
participating shares™™ {357, 819,161) (357,819,161)
Total lEabilities
(L21L531)  (172,847) (2,B72,506) (44,609,204) (423,835,240) (472,701,508)
Liquidity risk exposure 25,994,437 18,182,096 M?_ﬂluﬂi 194,723,454 (269,698,393) (16,842)

*Redemption cldified under msturty” undated” will be paed by the Adminstrator 1o the imestor onoe KYC i bésn ceared.

**The Fund does nob expect bo pay oul edemplions ualil scels are realsad, for which then: B no estabished Bmefine. Gheen the diecion” mghis to restrict
redemplions, the iBguid natune of the invesiment portfobs, The Fund expects the exl sirategy process 1o be conchadad by the end of 2025 with some of the deals
wihich might o beyond 2025, The Isvestment Manager has paid out UISD 131,000,000 during 2023, Ghven that he [rvestment Manager does mol have full visibiity
o the remaining balenoe at this stage, we have Cabegorised Same under bucket undaed,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)
1B, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
18.6 Liquidity risk (continued)
11 Decentbér 2022

3 Months ims G012 1tad Undated Total

o less manths moriths years

Asets uso usD usD UsD usD uso
Loans necehvabile at amomised ost 6500 268 47,1330 B2838.524 131,062,586 - X3.220,112 530,259,360
Financal assets at fair value thiough peoft o loss 1600492 5505609 7.606,635 - 6929826 54,144,752
s reshabies mcluting prepiymants 1,519 - . - o4, 148 115,667
Amound due from broker 68,502 9,324,050 . E . 9,352 552
Cash and cash equivalents 3,504,238 . . . . 3,604,238

Todal assets 78489419 62,263,069 20,447 759 131,162,586 301,294,086 663 606,919

SESEEEEE $ SEEEEEE EEssaE® - SEESEEE $ SSSEEEE -
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TD THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2033
[CONTINUED)
18, FINANCIAL RISH MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.6 Liquidity risk (continwsed)
IMonths o 310 6 months Gtoll 14 yeas Unlaten Tokal
e months
sD usD UsD usD usD usD
Liabslties:
Actrued expenses {1,138,529) . - - - {1,138,520)
Lowns payabies (1,068,442} (33831) (3,956,315  {45213,852) (6,217,990} (84,771,430)
Cther payaiie {73,558} (75,400) - - (3,298,906} [3447.364)
i (15,402,971} (367, 164) . - (2479.963)  (18,710,098)
et ssets atiribulsble 10 hidders of redesmabie
participating thares** {16 220424)  (15,080,685) - +  [SMPE2ETY)  (556,065685)
Tokal labdlities (33,904,004)  [(15,E50,084) (31,956,315  (45213,852)  (SIETO8531)  (B63.E14,106)
Lhguidity ris; goxposune A4, 554,455 +,412,585 EE 49144 BEETIH (235,404,845) (2T,187)

*Redemption clxssfied under matury™ unclatied” will b pacd by the Administrator to the imestor ance KNG hars been dleaned.,

**The Fund does not expect 10 pay cul redempbions: ot assets ane realised, for which there &5 no established tmeline. Ghaen the directons’ rights (o restrct
redemptions, the iliquid ature of the investment portfolio, The Fand expects the et strategy process (o be concluded by the end of 2025 with some of the deals
which might go beyond 2005, The Investment Managar has paid out USD 92,000,000 during 2003 and USD 32,000,000 post year end, Grven that the Inwestment
Manager does nof have Tull visidily on the remaining balance al this siage, we have categonsed same under Ducket undabed,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.7 Foreign currency risk

The Fund enters transactions that are denominated in currencies other than its functional currency, primarily
in US daollars (USD). Consequently, the Fund is exposed to risk that the exchange rate of its currency relative
to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the fair value or future
cash flows of the Fund's financial assets or financial liabilities denominated.

The net asset value per share is computed in USD, Other than cash and cash equivalents, all financial
instruments are denominated in USD, The Fund, thus foreign currency risk is limited to bank account.

The following i an analysis of foreign currency exposure other than USD at 31 December 2023;

Monetary Monetary Met

assets liabilities Exposure

2023 2023 2023

usp uspD usp

South African Rand B41 - 841
Euro 838,203 (483,716) 354,487
Zimbabwean dollar 294 - 294

The following i an analysis of currency exposure other than USD at 31 December 2022:

Monetary Monetary
assets liabilities Met Exposure
2022 2022 2022
usD ush uso
South African Rand 700 - 700
Euro 952,078 (728,783) 223,295
Zimbabwean dollar 2,200 (765) 1,444

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, had the US dollar strengthened by 10% (2022: 10%) in relation to all currencies,
with all other variables held constant, net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares
fior the year would have increased by the amounts shown below. A 10% weakening of the US dollar against
the below currencies would have resulted in an equal but opposite effect on the financial statement
amounts shown below, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

2023 2022
uso uso
South African Rand +f- 84 4= 70
Euro +- 35,448 +f- 22,330

Zimbabwean dollar +f- 29 +f- 144
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
{A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

18.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.8 Geographical risk

Geographical risk refers to the uncertainty associated with investing in 2 particular country, and more
specifically the degree to which that uncertainty could lead to losses for investors. This uncertainty can
come from any number of factors including political, economic, exchange-rate, or technological influences.

Below are tables describing the geographical risk of loans and receivables basad on counterparty’s country.

Carrying Carrying

amount amount
2023 2023 2022 2022
usD B uso %
Australia 7,786,674  2.18% - -
Botswana 1,419,517  0.40% 255,566 0.05%
Democratic Republic of the Congo 3,222,086 0.90% 17,010,787 3.06%
Egypt - - 5,532,046 0.99%
Guemsey - - 55,731 0.01%
Guinea 7,978,549 2.23% 15,213.329 2.74%
Ghana 76,098,908 21.27% 21,044,051 3.78%
Hong Kong 429,025 0.12% - -
Ivory Coast - L 549,450 0.10%
Kenya 15,197,305 4.25% 25,645,835 4.61%
Malta 10,213,326  2.B5% 17,051,581 3.07%
Mauritius 1,213,703 0.34% - =

Migeria - - 4,949,999 0.89%
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.8 Geographical risk {continued)

Senegal

Singapore

South Africa

Tanzania

Liganda

United Arab Emirates

United Kingdom

Zambia

Zimbabwe

Carrying
amount
2023
usD

4,958,545

120,849,783

6,083,194

3,151,036

50,342

37,444,080

44,517,309
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2023
%

1.29%

33.77%

1.70%

0.88%

0.01%

10.46%

12.44%

0.63%
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Carnying
amount
2022

usD

22,130,983

807,979

180,816,919

7,706,706

3,632,563

8,448,850

29,943,212

19,211,878

1,465,518
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2022
%

3.98%

0.15%

32.52%

1.39%

0.65%

1.52%

5.38%

3.45%

0.26%
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT EU}HTIHUED}
18.9 Investment restriction breaches

Cash balances were in line with the minimum requirement of 2.5% as per POM as at 31 December 2023
and 2022,

As part of the exit strategy of the Fund and compulsory redemption, the Investment Manager notifies the
Company that the investment cbjective of the Fund is no longer reasonably achievable in accordance with
the investment policies and restrictions for the year 2023 and 2022,

1B.10 Concentration risk

It is the Fund's policy to diversify its investment portfolio by investing in various classes of investments with
various strategies to limit the volatility and risk if one particular sector, market or company could suffer a
major downfall which could significantly and adversely affect the overall performance of the Fund. There
iz internal limit set up in terms of country exposure risk, commodity limit and sector limit, As part of the
exit strategy of the Fund and compulsary redemption, the Investment Manager notifies the Company that
the investment objective of the Fund is no longer reasonably achievable in accordance with the investment
policies and restrictions for the year 2023 and 2022.

The table below sets out the concentration risk of the sectorsfindustry that the exposure lies at 31
December;

2023 2022
Metals 32% 15%
Equipment 21% 9%
Coal 6% 17%
FMCG 6% 11%
Fertilizer 129%, 108
Logistics 4% Q%
Cement = 7%
Crude Oil 7% 45
Other commodities 8% 18%

Other commodities consisting of 8% in 2023 and 18% in 2022 is made up of 18 (2022: 23) commodity
sectors such as chemicals, petroleum products, juice, textile, fruits, minerals, sugar, vanilla, nuts, and
seeds. Mone of the other commodities individually contribute more than 4% (2022:4%) to the 18% (2022;
18%G) total,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.11 Fair value estimation

The financial instruments below are measured at fair value through profit or koss. The following table
presents the movement in level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2023;

Level 3 roll
2023 2022
uso uso
Opening balance 94,144,762 128,633,455
Met change in unrealized gain/(loss) on
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 18,895,429 (19,576,253)
Realised loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (4,668,121) (5,863,742}
Profit margin 2,160,597 2,076,629
Loans disbursed 17,407,747 42 625,994
Repayment (28,234,320) (52,751,321)
Financial assets at fair value through profit
& loss transfermed to Barak Structured
Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio 1,751,467 -
Receivable 683,214 -
Closing balance 102,140,775 94,144,762

The table below analyses these financial instruments per valuation method.
Fair value Valuation technique

usoD usD
2023
Financial assets at fair value through profit or koss 102,140,775 Market value
2022
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 54,144,762 Market value

The fair value of the loans receivable at FVTPL is based on the market price of Iron Ore, Sugar and Nuts.
Thesa are sold at market price.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.11 Fair value estimation (continued)

The valuation methods are characterised as follows:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: Input other than quoted prices included within level 1 that is observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); and

- Level 3: Input for the asset or liability that is not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
input).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
is determined based on the lowest bevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety.
If fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on observable
inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the
fair value measurement in its entity requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by
class) measured at fair value:

Significant Significant

Quoted observable unobservable
market prices inputs inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
usp uso uso uso
2023
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 102,140,775 - - 102,140,775
2022
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 04,144,762 - - 94,144,762

They are classified as level 3 fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, being the probability
of recoverability of the loan.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(CONTINUED)

19. GOING CONCERN ASSESSMENT

As 3 result of the COVID-19 impact management has noted a significant portion of its borrowers’ showing
signs of cashflow and liquidity problems due to supply chain disruption and economic downturn, which
resulted in the borrower's default on their repayment agreements. These matters indicate the esistence of
a material uncertainty relating to going concern, which may cast significant doubt about the Fund's ability
to continue as a going concern. The directors of the Fund suspended the voluntary redemption rights of
shareholders in the Fund on 30 March 2020 to protect the Portfolio’s value to ensure that all shareholders
in it were treated equally. From the date of the suspension to the date of signing of the financial statements,
the directors have ensured that the Fund’s Investment Manager has continued to manage the investment
portfolio of the Fund with a view to maintaining investor value and protecting the assat base of the Portfolio.

The directors, on advice from the Investment Manager, do not currently believe that the drcumstances
that gave rise to the suspension are likely to cease to exist in the short to medium term and has therefore

taken recourse to the exit route,

To maximise shareholder value, the Investment Manager intends to realise the loans receivable in a
controlled manner rather than on a “fire-sale” basis. This process will, over time, comvart the assets to
cash.

The Portfolio will then, via a process of compulsory redemptions, return distributable cash to investors on
a pro-rata basis as part of the winding down of the Portfolio.

Management is dedicated to sustaining a transparent outlook and providing a solid foundation during the
current phase of the Fund's life cycle.

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 there have been no investor complaints against the
Fund. Thera is currently no ongoing litigation and as such there are no contingent liabilities up to the date
of issue of these financial statements.

21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The geopolitical conflicts in different regions in the Middle East as well as the Eastern Europe have had a
major impact on logistics and supply of commadities around the world. The Investment Manager does not
consider there to be any material impact or risk of potential future impact related directly to these conflicts,
given that the Fund has no direct or indirect business operations, interest or investments in these areas,
or business relationships with any companies that do.

The Investment Manager is however mindful of the overall economic uncertainty and negative impacts on
the global economy and major financial markets arising from thesa conflicts and the situation continues to
be closely monitored.

The Fund has received net repayment amounting to USD 14,246,910 as at 31 May 2024, As at date of
signature of the financial statements, the Fund paid, by way of compulscry redemption amounting to
LUSD 18,000,000 to all investors of the Fund in proportion to their shareholdings.

Based on the average 2 year forward curve, the price of Iron Ore has decreased from USD 126,92 per
metric tons in December 2023 to USD 108.63 per metric tons in May 2024.

There have been no other material events after the reporting date which would require disclosure or
adjustment to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023,
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(2024 )
1,007,607,676 158,093,644
625,406,264 98,126,243
( 382,201,413 59,967,402
B1 340,902,874 53,487,661
B2 28,450,296 4,463,851
B3 499,309 78,342
B4 12,348,933 1,937,548
B1 1,493,911
B2 338,929
B3 6,093
B4 18,163,681
)
B1 228.19 35,803
B2 83.94 13,170
B3 76.83 12,917
B4 0.68 107
B4
B4 2019 10 2020 31
B4
13 0 703,220 28,155,094
(2021 2021 12 31 ) ) (703,220) (28,155,094)
14 0 3,408,702 24,746,392
(2022 2022 12 31 ) ) (3.408,702) (24,746,392)
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15 0 5,740,395 19,005,996

(2023 2023 12 31 ) 0 (5.740,395) (19,005,996)
13 2021
30 20,000,000
14 2021 12
31 2022 31 2022 30 92,000,000
15 2022 12
31 2023 31 2023 30 131,000,000

180/216



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2021

12

40

1988

2.1

2.2

1993

1993
3,198
CIMA
CFATF
CFATF 1992
16
CIMA

181/216

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

1960

12,000

CIMA

FATF

2020

CIMA



2020
4(4)
CIMA 2020
CIMA
4.1
CINA
MF3
4.2
CIMA
CINA
4.3 4Q)
@)

~ ™
o o/

2020

CIMA

MF2 MF2A

100,000

182/216

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

15

4(4) CINMA

2020
2020

4,268

3.2

CIMA

4,268



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

)
100,000
B
(b) ) (D)
CIMA 4,268
)
CIMA
3,049
© 403
4(3)
4.4
@ 4(3)
100,000
15
(b) CIMA
Offering
Memorandum
4,268
©
5.1
Prospectus Offering Memorandum
CIMA 2020
5.2 CIMA 2020 NAV

NAV
NAV NAV

183/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

NAV
5.3 CINA CINA
CIMA CIMA
CINA
@
(b)
©
@
©
5.4
CINA
5.5 CIMA 2023
2023 10 14 CINA
CINA
5.6 2021
CIMA CINA
CINA
CINA

CIMA

6.1

184/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)

OOoooooooooooOooao
6.2

CIMA 2
50

6.3

4.2 CIMA
6.4 CIMA

CIMA

4(3) 4.3

4(4) 4.4

6.5 CIMA
CIMA

CIMA
@

(b)

©
(D
©)

6.6 CIMA

6.7 CIMA

6.8 50

24,390 50
30,488 8,536

50

185/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

36,585 50
42,682 6,097

7.1
@

(b)

©

(D)

18

e

Q)

@

()

@

()

186/216



7.2

7.3

Q)

(m

Q)

€Y

(b)

©

(D

©)

Q)

@

Q)
(M)

@

(b)

©

EDINETOOOO

OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

30
20

CIMA

50

150

1907

2021

187/216

10

1925



(D)

()

2013

Q)

2021

@

Q)

(M) 50

188/216

N~ A~

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao



7.4

@

)

@

(b) LLC

(c) LLC

(d) LLC

©)

(f) LLC

)

(9) LLC

(h) LLC

(i) LLC

@

(k) LLC

(DLLC
(n) LLC

LLC

24

2016 2016
2023
LLC
LLC
LLC LLC
LLC
LLC
LLC
LLC LLC
(i) LLC
LLC
LLC
LLC
LLC
LLC
50
LLC

LLC

189/216

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

2016
LLC

LLC

LLC

LLC

LLC

LLC



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

CIMA

8.1 CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

8.4 CIMA

8.5 CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

8.7 CIMA

@
(b)

©

(D)

)
Q)

8.8 8.7
CIMA

(a) CINA

8.1

8.3

100

Cl

10

MA
10

8.3

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

190/216

500

CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

10

10

10

CIMA

8.9

CIMA



(b)
©
(d) CINA

8.9 8.7
@ 40D

(b)
©)
(d
®
8.10 CIMA 8.9

8.11 CIMA

8.12  8.9(d)

8.13  8.9(e)

8.14  8.13
8.15  8.9(d)

(a) CINA
()

CINA
(c) 8.15(b)
CIMA
8.16  8.9(d)
CINA

8.17

(a) CINA
()

©

CIMA

CIMA
CIMA
4(3)
8.9(e) CINA
CIMA
CIMA
8.9(e)
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
8.9(e) CIMA
10
8.15
94(4)

191/216

4(3)

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

CIMA

4(4)(a)
CIMA

CINA

CIMA
CIMA
CINA
8.15
CIMA
CIMA
100
CIMA



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

(d)
CINA 8.9(d) 8.9(e)

.18 CIMA 8.17 CIMA
8.9

.19 CIMA  8.9(a)

.20 8.17(c)

.21 CIMA

.22 CIMA CIMA

M ®) 4(3) 4(3) M OICY

CIMA

.1 CIMA CIMA
CIMA

500
CIMA 10

CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA

CIMA 10

CIMA
10
CIMA 100

.6 CIMA CIMA

@

(b)

192/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

9.7 CIMA
9.8 CIMA 9.10
@
)
©) XVIIA LLC 12
(D)
e
®
@
™
9.9 CINA 9.8
CINA
@
( ) CIMA
) CIMA
()
() CINA
( ) CIMA
() CINA
()
( ) CIMA CIMA
(b) CINA
(c) CINA
(d) CINA
9.10 9.8 CINA
@
)

©

193/216



()
)
J11 CIMA - 9.10

12 9.10(d)

13 9.10(e)

.14 9.13

15 9.10(d)

(a) CINA

(b)

() 9.15(b)
CIMA
.16 9.10(d)
(@ 9.15

(b)

CIMA

.17

(a) CINA

(b)

.18 CIMA 9.17

.19 CINA
@
(b)

.20
9.10

9.10(e)
CIMA

9.10(e)

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

9.10(e)

10

9.15

CINA
CIMA
CINA
CIMA
CIMA
94(4)
9.10(d)
CINA
CIMA
CINA

194/216

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
100

CIMA

9.10(e)

CIMA



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

9.21
CIMA

10
10.1 CIMA CIMA

@

(b)

©

(d)
10.2 10.1(a) 10.1(d)

CINA

10.3  CINA

(@ 10.1(a) 10.1(d)

(b)

(©)
10.4 CINA

CIMA

@

(b)

©

(D)

©)

CIMA

10.5 CIMA CIMA CIMA

10.6 CIMA
20
CIMA 10

11 CIMA
11.1 11.2 50(3) CIMA

CIMA

195/216



10,000
50,000

(a) CINA

(b) CIMA

©

(d)

©)

11.2 11.1

12

@)
(b) CINA
CIMA

@

50(3)
W)

)

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

@ 14(1)

(b)

196/216

14(2)



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

@

~
~

(b)

©

(D)

)

12.5
@

(b)

12.6

13 /
13.1 257

@

()
©

13.2 247 248
@

197/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

(b)
10

©

13.3 2016 CIDL
CIDL 3(1)(a) 3(LA)
14
14.1
2018 2023
CIMA
8.17(b) 9.17(b)
14.2
CIMA
8.17(c)
14.3
CIMA
8.17(d)
14.4
LLC LLC LLC
LLC
LLC
CINA
LLC 8.17(b) 9.17(b)

14.5

198/216



7.4(1)

15

7.1(1)

2023

15.1

2010

2003 11 17

15.2 CIMA

15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

CIMA

15.7
() 13.1

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

199/216

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

LLC
7.2(F) 7.3(i)

4 D@

20



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

(b)

CIMA

©
CIMA

(D)
5(2)(a)

CIMA

15.8
€Y 5(2)(a)

CIMA

CIMA

(b)

200/216



©

(D)

15.9
@

(b)

©

(D)

©)

21

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

21 (4)

201/216

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

52



)

)

QY

)

Q)

@

(

)

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

10
12
()
50
15
21 (5)
50
21 (6) 21 (4) 21 (5)

202/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

)

Q)
CINA

15.10
€)) Vi

CIMA

(b)

©) 26
15.11

@

CIMA
CIMA

(b)

©

(D

15.12
@) 4 (D 4 (6) CIMA

CIMA 2020
CIMA

(b) CIMA 2020
37

203/216



x )
x )

x )

x )

x )

x )

)
x )

x )

x )
Q)

)

(xxiv)

Q)

)
©

x ) (x )

xx )

204/216

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao



16

16.1

16.2 ES

2018

16.3 ES

16.4 ES
@

(b)

©

16.5 ES

17

TIA

2020

TIA
TIA

LLC

17.1

CIMA

17.2

CIMA
4(1) 4(3) 4@ @

205/216

ES

2021

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

2022 13

2020



b
2010
17.3 17.2
CINA
17.4
21 CINA
17.5
CINA
CINA
PFA
17.6
18
18.1

18.2

FAQs

CIMA

366

PFA

206/216

EDINETOOOO

OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)

CIMA
CIMA
1
2
CIMA
4,268

OOoooooooooooOooao

CIMA



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

207/216



EDINETOOOO
0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

30 14
14
29 15

2022 31

B4 2019 11

B4 B4 1

CIMA

SPC

2009 3 4

208/216



EDINETOOOO
0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)
OoooddoonnooOonn

FX

B4 B4 B4 1
B4 B4

2008 11 1

LIBOR

209/216



EDINETOOOO
0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)
OoooddoonnooOonn

B3 B4

Bl B2

01C

Bl B2 B3

B4

B4

Bl
B4

B2

B3

210/216



EDINETOOOO
0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)
OoooddoonnooOonn

Bl B2 B3 B4

a 1933
S 902
b CFTC 4.7
902
CFTC 4.7

211/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

SPC
2023 12 31
SPC
IFRS
2023 12 31
I1SA
1ESBA
1ESBA
2023 12 31
451,323,948 2022 614,404,022

19

212/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

IFRS

1SA

1SA

213/216



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

MHA *
2024 24
* MHA MHA

MHA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT
TO THE DIRECTORS OF BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated
Portfolio (a Segregated Portfolio of Barak Fund SPC Limited) (the ““Fund””), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Fund as at 31 December 2023, and its financial

performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS® Accounting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““I1SA””). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants®
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 5 of the financial statements which describes that as at 31 December
2023, the Fund held investments in loan receivables of US$451,323,948 (2022: US$614,404,022).
Management believes this represents the best estimate of the fair value. However, the actual
realizable value may be materially different. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 in the financial statements, which indicates that a significant
portion of the Fund®s borrowers are showing signs of cashflow and liquidity problems, which
ultimately resulted in borrowers defaulting on their repayment agreements during the period.
As stated in Note 2, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note
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2, 5 and 19, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Investment Manager®s Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor®s
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor®s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund®s financial reporting
process.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those
charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund"s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
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one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Use of Our Report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Fund"s Directors
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands
it may come.

MHA CAYMAN *
24 June 2024

* MHA Cayman (the trading name of MHA Maclntyre Hudson Cayman Ltd) is part of the MHA network, the UK member of Baker Tilly

International.

)
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